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Corporate Profile
NI P

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited
has been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since
2003. The Group is the leading producer
of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive products and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Asia. Our products
are sold to food distributors, international
trading companies, and manufacturers of
food, paper, textile, and chemical products
in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the
PRC, Japan, Taiwan and several European
countries. Most of our products are
marketed under the VEDAN brand name.

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group’s production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Corporate Information

NAEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EX &
Executive Directors #l{TEE

YANG, Tou-Hsiung 15 R I
(Chairman) (/%)

YANG, Cheng BIE

YANG, Kun-Hsiang 15 3 £

(Chief Executive Officer) (7T 44 #)
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22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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5th Floor, Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road,
Central, Hong Kong
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Second Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,

Cayman Islands
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CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR
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Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Second Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,

Cayman Islands
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Tricor Tengis Limited
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INTERNET ADDRESS H i i {8 it

Website 81k : www.vedaninternational.com
Email address & ##h ik : vdi@vedaninternational.com

STOCK CODE Bg {7 £ 5%

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBAR 502317

Bloomberg 1% : 2317 HK

Reuters &% : 2317.HK

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS = ES ¥ th B}

Vietnam Office M= E
National Road 51, Hamlet 1A,
Phuoc Thai, Long Thanh District,
Dong Nai Province, Vietnam
Tel: (84) 251-3825 111

Fax: (84) 251-3543 160
MERRE

B 9 S5 48 ZR 4t
S1EE S E1AE

%5 (84) 251-3825 111
fBE : (84) 251-3543 160

Shanghai, China Office F B LB ERE
No. 518 Lianying Road, Chedun Town,
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (86) 21-5760 2525

Fax: (86) 21-5760 2030

H B b TR R B A A BR 5 185%
T5E ¢ (86) 21-5760 2525

fE5E : (86) 21-5760 2030

Xiamen, China Office 7 EEFI P EE
568, North Tong Ji Road,

Tong-An District, Xiamen City,

Fujian Province, PRC

Tel: (86) 592-712 8111

Fax: (86) 592-702 9274
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A % [ [A) %5 3k B2 5685%

FE 5 (86) 592-712 8111

{55 : (86) 592-702 9274

Taiwan Office A EWEE
18 Jinhua Street, Shalu,
Taichung, Taiwan, ROC

Tel: (886) 4-2665-2178
Fax: (886) 4-2665-6463
aAaRm

b e [ 8 FE AT 1858

%55 (886) 4-2665-2178
B E : (886) 4-2665-6463

Hong Kong Office EE W EE
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1888

Fax: (852) 2861-0285
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& M L5418

TG ¢ (852) 2980-1888

{55 : (852) 2861-0285



Financial Highlights
MBERE

BEt-A=Z+-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
us$'000 US$'000 Difference
TER FE ER
Revenue g 357,857 356,772 0.3%
Gross profit EF 66,565 67,498 (1.4%)
Profit for the year REZHM 15,585 17,394 (10.4%)
Profit attributable to owners BAEAEERET 15,563 14,285 8.9%
Basic earnings per share FRERZF 1.02US cents E{l 094 US centsEfl
Diluted earnings per share TREFERT 1.02US cents E{l 094 US centsEfl
Final dividend proposed per share BRERRERE 0.214 US cents E{l  0.265 US cents%fll
Total dividends paid and B REIR
proposed per share BRREEH 0.614 US cents Efll  0.563 US cents 1l
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
wE ARG REF W &
in US$'000 F37T in US$'000 F7T
25,000 500,000
20,000 19,061 400,000 356,772 357,857
15,563 322,805
15,000 14,285 300,000
10,000 200,000
5,000 100,000
0 0
2017 2018 2019 2017 2018 2019

REVENUE BY PRODUCTS
BEmOBzB&S

12 months ended 31 Dec 2019
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6.9%

16.4%

. MSG and seasonings
BRAB+ TR

Modified starch & ‘

native starch & maltose

BRI+ KA+ EHE

65.3%

Specialty chemicals
FLER

Fertilisers and feed products
B SRR

Others
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REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION

Rt E D Bz W

12 months ended 31 Dec 2019
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking into 2019, as global economies were affected by Sino-
US trade conflict, regional tensions in Middle East and Europe, and
weather events related to climate change, thus companies became
more conservative in their investment. Global economic growth
slowed down, but the rate of economic expansion of emerging
markets still exceeded that of developed countries. In Vietnam, the
economy kept growing in 2019, with GDP rising 7.02%. Foreign
investments steadily flowed in, while the commodity index remained
stable. Import and export trade surged to a new high as the country
has recorded a trade surplus for several years. Exchange and interest
rates were stable. The overall economy in Vietnam therefore grew
steadily in the year providing an opportunity for us to develop our
business.

ETEBRESE

4RER2019%F » B ERESIHE

Armed with modern technology
and sound management, we have
successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the
consumers’ tastes and demands.
BREHAB &R EHEEE
BFFe ZEEEEMS NLE
HEBEMOKMESK-

Yang, Tou-Hsiung # 5E 1
ChairmanZ J&
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EMSERZEHE
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7.02%  HNEREFBEREIL M NERKDA
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

However, the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020 quickly decelerated
economic activities around the world, in particular in the PRC and
Asia. In the past few months, consumption stagnated in general,
and the supply of some commodities was out-of-balance for a short
period of time. Overall economic growth is expected to be affected,
adding uncertainties to the economic environment.

Regarding the Group's operations in 2019, following the changing
economic atmosphere and demand in different regions, revenue and
profit of our main products recorded both decreases and increases.
Of which, revenue of modified starch, maltose, fertilisers and feed
products were driven by the slowdown of material costs increase
and rising product sales, while sales and profit of MSG, hydrochloric
acid and soda products shrank as affected by lower selling prices
amidst strong market competition and high prices of some raw
materials. Therefore, the Group’s operations focused on stabilising
costs, actively expanding business and strengthening sales, as well as
developing new products and new markets, with the hope to boost
revenue and profitability.

Looking at our business operations and revenue during the period,
the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately US$357,857,000,
a solid increase of around US$1,085,000, or around 0.3%, when
compared with last year. In particular, modified starch, maltose,
fertilisers and feed products and trade products in the PRC have
recorded a notable increase, while the sales of MSG, hydrochloric
acid and soda products dropped due to keen competition, which
led to a decrease of revenue for these products. Gross profit for
the period was around US$66,565,000, and gross profit margin
decreased by 0.3% from last year to 18.6%. The decrease in gross
profit was mainly because the sales volume and selling prices of
higher margin hydrochloric acid and soda products declined amidst
intensifying market competition. During the period, due to the paper
profit of a subsidiary in Shandong and impairment loss on goodwill
of a subsidiary in Shanghai, net profit for the period amounted to
US$15,585,000, around US$1,809,000 lower than the previous year.
Net profit margin was 4.4%, and net profit attributable to owners
was US$15,563,000, which was 8.9% or US$1,278,000 higher than
the previous year.

08  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ BIES (#2:A%) AR A 7
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Major geographic markets and segment performance of the Group
varied in accordance with the demand for products and level of
competition in different markets. In Vietnam, overall economic
sentiment steadily picked up and the performance of various products
including MSG, seasonings, modified starch, maltose, fertiliser and
feed products improved alongside the increasing market demand,
benefitting from stable product quality, strong brand influence
and the support of well-established sales channels. However, the
selling price and sales volume and thus the revenue of the specialty
chemical hydrochloric acid and soda dropped notably because of
price competition in the market. Therefore, the Group's overall
revenue from Vietnam slightly dropped by 0.1% from last year. In
the PRC market, major products such as MSG and seasonings, which
were still affected by price competition, also recorded a decrease in
sales volume, so the Group’s performance in those segments faced
a downturn when compared with the previous year. In the period,
revenue from starch and trading of distribution products increased
substantially year-on-year, thanks to stronger sales channels, so
overall revenue of the PRC market recorded growth of around 12.0%
from last year. In Japan, the recovery of its economy was relatively
slow. Many products still suffered from fierce price competition in the
market, so selling prices of the Group’s MSG and fertilisers products
declined moderately. However, modified starch managed to boost its
sales volume and selling price as the market had stronger demand
for higher-end products, so the Group’s general performance in this
market grew around 2.9% from the previous year. In the ASEAN
market, the sales volume of the Group's major products including
MSG and modified starch dropped due to keen price competition,
so the performance in this region plummeted 15% from last year.
In addition, the operations in the US rebounded around 5.2%
benefitting from rising sales of maltose products.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

By items, the Group’s major products are MSG and seasonings.
Although the sales in Vietnam remained stable, those in other markets
were affected by competition internationally, so overall revenue was
around 0.1% lower than the previous year. Regarding another key
product category — starch products — the supply and price of its raw
material, cassava, stabilised as compared with the previous year, and
demand increased slightly, so the sales volume and selling price of
modified starch increased, generating a higher revenue for the Group.
Maltose was another key starch product that also benefited from the
stable price and supply of cassava and recorded higher sales volume
and selling prices as well as revenue during the year. Therefore,
revenue from starch and maltose products for the year saw an increase
of approximately 4.9% against the last year. Observing the market
potential and bright development prospects of these products, the
Group is working hard on the development of these products and their
variants, so that it may offer more diverse and value-added products. As
for hydrochloric acid and soda within the specialty chemicals segment,
the continuous improvement of the economy in Vietnam helped to
stabilise the demand for basic chemicals, but the selling price and sales
volume of hydrochloric acid both dropped due to intensifying market
competition in the year. Soda in particular, also recorded a lower selling
price and sales volume due to market competition, so revenue of this
product fell notably in the period, while the overall revenue of specialty
chemicals significantly decreased by 24.2% from last year. Regarding
the Group's fertilisers and feed products, demand in Taiwan, Korea and
Europe increased, and so did the selling prices and performance. As the
Group has been actively developing fertilisers and feed products with
higher added value, and seeking new customers, so their sales amount
was approximately 15.2% higher than the previous year, generating
greater revenue and profit to the Group.

In this period, seeing intense price competition and rising production
costs of various products, we focused on strengthening the Group’
s business, improving the cost control measures and developing new
products and new markets. A more flexible and comprehensive material
procurement model and an upgrade of production technologies
were implemented in the period, with the aim to stabilise costs and
maintain the Group’s competitiveness in production. In terms of
marketing strategy, the Group has set up a subsidiary in Cambodia
during the year to map out and strengthen its local sales network and
look for new business opportunities. In order to boost sales, other
than strengthening its efforts in the Vietnam market, the Group also
allocated resources into developing emerging markets with promising
growth potential. We have also strengthened our distribution channels
and adjusted our sales and marketing strategy in the relatively mature
sales channels to enhance and realise the full potential of our sales
network. Furthermore, we have stepped up strengthening sales of
researched new products and plan-introduced relevant new products,
with the objective of substantially boosting our brand influence. Within
the PRC operation, the Group has continued to strengthen its business
development team, worked to boost the trading of the distribution
products with higher added value and strived to expand markets in
different regions to realise marketing efficiency.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Looking ahead to 2020, we realise that the Group's operations will
continue to encounter rapid changes in the business environment.
In particular, the possible shortage of local raw materials in Vietnam
and the rising raw material prices in the international markets are
greater hidden concerns. Regarding the issues of major raw material
supply and the trend of continued competition in the market,
there are still challenges for the Group’s operation in the future.
Nonetheless, Vietnam continues to experience economic growth.
Well-positioned to tap the strong potential in that market, the Group
will remain prudent yet optimistic. We will expedite investment in the
development of new products and new markets in order to enhance
its brand influence. By more effectively using our channels resources,
we can more flexibly and dynamically operate the business. Thus we
will formulate appropriate strategies aiming to help the Group to
capture opportunities and cope with the rapidly-evolving business
environment. At the same time, the Group will continue to strive
to secure major sources of raw materials and alternative sources to
stabilise production costs, and hasten development of new products
and the pace of entering strategic alliances. In doing so, we shall
be able to strengthen and effectively execute our sales strategies
as Vietnam further opens its market and its economy continues to
steadily grow. We shall also have greater opportunities to expand our
different businesses and markets elsewhere. Building on its current
solid business foundation, the Group believes that its businesses will
continue to advance along the right development track. All of our
managements at various levels are well aware of the opportunities
and responsibilities in the changing business environment, hence
they will pragmatically and diligently execute the Group's planned
operational strategies with an open mind thorough proactive
approach, and thereby develop and achieve breakthroughs in our
operations and results.

By Order of the Board

Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

24 March 2020

RE20205F RMESINKREAELE LIDEER
RERFMREB(C LHE SRR
ROER URBEEREMERAERET &28
ARRE -MEHERHMHEE TEHERFE
RERE SEELE LN RRANIE T
B EMREKERERET MHERAENINRE
# SEDASFERLBNEE  MREZHEA
MERMMSNER BEREARENE ERE
BRETR - ARIRTHE S OB I R B I - e
FIAERARE U EER R LERREZ RS
RE-RARN SEFEESHRBEERIEER
TR AT E AR DR B fn 3 JR N 3R RS
Bk B 0 B0 25 - DA HATE T B DA T 45 B AR 4K R IE
T REABEXBHEERE FANICEKS
EEFBREEATIGETELE SR - KEH
B ERAKERR T SEEEFEHAMER
W mER -MEBENSRERE TAES
IEBEZENKERTETNRKERBREZ
B USSARBMRLRERNORE BE
WEERMRHITEREERRE CERENEERE
KK SR BB R o

EEEESW
TE
B

—E-EFE=F-+HMH

Annual Report 2019 F %

11



Standing out In

a Specialised Industry
°© HIEREFM

EEPHREE




As a successful long-term player in a RFTEBR T BRI ERALT

market with significant entry barriers, FRES mMEB KAl
Vedan International has distinct H - ZRAR S B
competitive advantages that add real FEDENMEENEE
value to its products. With advanced REmMT B RNRIR 2 B
expertise in large-scale fermentation Bz A AN Tk 2
technology, starch processing conversion & fi# 1k 8 5 4 3 B i Bk /4
technology and chemical and electro- [ R A [T 35 R SR AR EE SR RSB
chemical technology, Vedan International BT & fn * £ & 2K & Fl 8l &
is developing new products which SR SHE B T] o

represent the latest breakthroughs in
industrial science and look set to be major
profit drivers in the future.

e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN WD

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The economic landscape in 2019 featured the protracted Sino-
US trade war, international geopolitical uncertainties and weak
investments by enterprises, contributing to a slowdown in
global economic growth. The global economic growth rate in
2019 was only 2.4%, the lowest since the financial crisis in
2008. A report issued by the World Bank also stated that major
countries in developed and developing economies as well as
emerging markets all experienced a slowdown in economic
growth compared with the previous year. Price fluctuations of
bulk commodities were large with overall prices lower than
those in 2018, while energy prices (excluding natural gas) rose
on an overall basis. Economists forecast that tensions between
the PRC and the US will continue despite signs of cooling down
in the trade war. That plus the geopolitical, climate change and
debt factors will bring challenges to the economies of different
countries.

Although the global economy remained unstable, Vietnam
recorded a GDP rise of 7.02% in 2019, the second consecutive
year that the country recorded a GDP expansion exceeding
7% in addition to outperforming its growth target of 6.8%.
This was also the second highest GDP level in Vietnam in the
most recent decade. The Sino-US trade war has accelerated
the relocation of production from the PRC. Exports to the US
were up 28% year-on-year, and in particular, domestic demand
for smartphones and retail apparel remained strong. Exports
and foreign investments were also robust. Import and export
trading volume amounted to US$516,960,000,000 as trade
surplus surged to a record high of US$9,940,000,000. Total
committed Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) was approximately
US$38,020,000,000, representing a year-on-year growth
of 7.2%, a 10-year high. The inflow of FDI amounted to
approximately US$20,380,000,000, climbing to a new high and
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.7%. The exchange
rate of the Vietnam Dong against the US Dollar stayed stable
throughout 2019, resulting in a controlled inflation rate. The
consumer price index (CPl) was 2.7%, down from 3.5% in
2018 and less than 4% for four consecutive years. Interest rates
were maintained at a stable level. Confronted by the slower
global trade growth and the complex and changing political
situation, Vietnam was still able to maintain rapid economic
growth.
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I. BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued) — RBGAE (\)

Vietnam indeed delivered a brilliant performance in 2019,
with consumption and investment becoming the country’s key
economic growth drivers. Nevertheless, Vietnamese enterprises
faced more intense competition and challenges. Profit of the
Group's key products varied during the year. For example, revenue
and gross profit of modified starch, maltose and fertilisers and
feed products increased benefitting from the slower rise in raw
material prices and the development of high value-added new
products. However, both revenue and gross profit of MSG and
specialty chemicals dropped due to price competition. In 2019,
the Group's revenue increased by 0.3% or US$1,085,000 year-on-
year to US$357,857,000, while gross profit decreased by 1.4%
or US$933,000 year-on-year to US$66,565,000. Overall gross
profit margin was down from 18.9% in 2018 to 18.6%. Its net
profit declined by 10.4% or US$1,809,000 as a result of the gain
from the disposal of investment in a Shandong subsidiary and the
impairment of goodwill of a Shanghai subsidiary, while net profit
attributable to shareholders was US$15,563,000, an increase of
8.9% or US$1,278,000. The Group’s net profit margin declined
slightly to 4.4% from 4.9% in the same period of 2018, owing
mainly to the stabilised costs of raw materials, adjustment in
selling prices to reflect costs and the gain from the disposal of
investment in a Shandong subsidiary which resulted in an increase
in both revenue and profit during the period.

The global economy was originally expected to achieve a moderate
recovery in 2020. However, the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) early this year has serious impact on the economic activities
around the world, in particular the PRC and regions in Asia. During the
year, the overall stagnant consumption and short-term imbalance in
demand and supply of certain commodities will affect overall economic
growth and market recovery is expected to remain fragile. Despite the
temporary calm in the Sino-US trade dispute, the high tariffs still posed
pressure on the PRC's economy. The escalating geopolitical conflict in
the Middle East and the effects of extreme weather have also added
risks to economic growth. Nevertheless, Vietnam has become one
of the key beneficiaries of industrial relocation amidst the Sino-US
trade war and the country remains committed to regional economic
integration, including through the signing of the Free Trade Agreement
(FTA) and Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific
Partnership (CPTPP) with developed economies such as the EU, Japan
and Korea. This has helped Vietnam attract more foreign investors
and strengthen its industry supply chain on one hand, but aroused
greater concerns about the bursting of the economic bubble caused by
weak global economic growth on the other hand. Confronted by the
changes in the economic landscape, the Group will continue to adopt a
prudent approach and formulate the best action plans and strategies to
address challenges in the external environment. Besides, it will deepen
its cooperation with multinational enterprises in the area of production,
actively explore new products, new markets and new channels to
secure raw material supplies and stabilise sales, aiming to build a strong
foundation to create business breakthroughs for the Group.
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Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS

- BERSWH

1. Sales Analysis by Market (—) MHBEEDH
Unit: US$'000 B FET
2019 2018 Difference
—E-nE “ET-N\E =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country EES &8 % 2H % i %
Vietnam il 177,635 49.6% 177,753 49.8% -118 -0.1%
Japan A& 64,820 18.1% 63,015 17.7% 1,805 2.9%
PRC e 43,669 12.2% 39,004 10.9% 4,665 12.0%
ASEAN RBEER 26,857 7.5% 31,593 8.9% -4,736 -15.0%
us xH 21,394 6.0% 20,327 5.7% 1,067 5.2%
Others Hi 23,482 6.6% 25,080 7.0% -1,598 -6.4%
Total At 357,857 100.0% 356,772 100.0% 1,085 0.3%
1. Vietnam 1. HBETYS

Vietnam is the largest market of the Group. In
2019, the Group’s revenue was approximately
UsS$177,653,000, dropped slightly by 0.1% or
US$118,000 when compared with 2018. The
share of revenue from the Vietnam market also
decreased slightly to 49.6% of the Group’s total
revenue from 49.8% in 2018. Performance in the
Vietnam market dropped slightly during the vyear,
despite the upward adjustment in selling prices of
MSG, modified starch and maltose, enhanced sales
of products with higher margin and intensified
promotion activities that pushed up revenue. Sales
volume and selling price of specialty chemicals
(hydrochloric acid and soda) were affected by
market competition, hence the substantial reduction
in revenue of the segment. The upward adjustment
in selling price of fertilisers and feed products drove
profit but caused overall sales volume to fall and
thus drop in revenue, which eventually led to the
lower-than-expected performance. As such, the
Group will continue to secure new customers and
improve the added value of these products.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
1. Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

The Group’s performance in the Japan market
managed to deliver growth for the year and
remained its second largest market. The Japanese
economy, driven largely by domestic demand,
has been recovering at a rather slow pace. Facing
market competition which affected the performance
of its MSG offering, the Group has adopted a
flexible pricing strategy to maintain the order
volume but this led to a small drop in revenue. As
for modified starch, due to the increasing demand
for high-end products and the Group's efforts
to secure new customers, promote cross-sector
applications, raise added value of the products
and increase selling price, revenue of the product
segment grew despite the decline in overall sales
volume. The growth also showed that the Group’s
investment in developing modified starch over
the years has reaped returns as this product made
a notable contribution to its results during the
period. The Group’s revenue from the market in
Japan amounted to US$64,820,000 during the year,
representing an increase of 2.9% or US$1,805,000
from 2018. The share of revenue generated from
Japan accounted for 18.1% of the Group’s total
revenue, higher than the 17.7% share recorded in
2018.

The PRC

Revenue from the PRC market increased by 12.0%
or US$4,665,000 to US$43,669,000 in 2019.
The country’s share of the Group's total revenue
climbed from 10.9% in 2018 to 12.2%. The growth
in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase
in sales from the trading of distribution products
developed by the Group in recent years and the
strategy to strengthen supply chain product types
started to bear fruit, leading to notable growth in
revenue compared with last year. Stronger demand
for modified starch also brought about year-on-year
growth in sales volume and revenue. The Group’s
upward adjustment to the selling price of MSG in a
bid to maintain reasonable profit caused a drop in
sales volume at the same time, and thus decline in
revenue.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
1. Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

4.

ASEAN countries

In 2019, the Group's revenue from ASEAN member
countries, excluding Vietnam, decreased by 15.0 %
or US$4,736,000 year-on-year to US$26,857,000
and its contribution to the total revenue was down
from 8.9% to 7.5%. The decrease in revenue
during the year was mainly due to the continued
price competition of MSG leading to the decrease
in both sales volume and revenue. Revenue of
modified starch also contracted as a result of
the price competition in the industry. The ASEAN
market is a major long-term development focus
of the Group and its subsidiary in Cambodia is
positioned as a base for further development.
The Group will also expand into other business
segments with its core products, secure and allot
distribution resources and expand sales channels,
hoping to achieve a breakthrough in sales to the
ASEAN market.

The US

Revenue from the US market reached
US$21,394,000 for the year, an increase of 5.2%
or US$1,067,000 against 2018. It accounted for
6.0% of the Group's total revenue against 5.7%
in 2018. The revenue increase was owed mainly to
stronger market demand for maltose, pushing up
the corresponding selling price and sales volume of
the products and also overall results. Demand for
MSG products was affected by market competition
and its revenue inevitably dropped. The Group
will continue to actively develop the organic
maltose and organic starch markets and deepen its
cooperation with leading global manufacturers in
order to deliver a satisfactory sales performance in
the future.

Other regions

Other markets mainly include Taiwan, Korea
and the European Union. Total revenue from the
markets for the year amounted to US$23,482,000,
down 6.4% or US$1,598,000, as compared with
US$25,080,000 in 2018. The share of the revenue
from other regions lowered to 6.6% of the Group’s
total revenue from 7.0% in 2018. The decline
was attributable to the drop in sales of MSG and
modified starch. Revenue from fertilisers and feed
products increased driven by the growth in market
demand.
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
2.  Sales Analysis by Product

. BRoW(E|)
(Z) EmEEDH

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2019 2018 Difference
—E-nE —ET-N\E =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Item EH Kx] % G % TR %
MSG and seasonings R #&+78 Bk At 233,524 65.3% 235,331 66.0% -1,807 -0.8%
Modified starch & ZHBID+ AR
native starch & maltose B +2 5 1 58,866 16.4% 56,128 15.7% 2,738 4.9%
Specialty chemicals FLEM 24,682 6.9% 32,552 9.1% -7,870 -24.2%
Fertilisers and feed A E2 A7 B
Products 24,388 6.8% 21,165 5.9% 3,223 15.2%
Others Hit 16,397 4.6% 11,596 3.3% 4,801 41.4%
Total At 357,857 100.0% 356,772 100.0% 1,085 0.3%
1. MSG and seasonings 7. I #& i 5 B Y

During the year, revenue from MSG and seasonings-
related products amounted to US$233,524,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.8%,
or US$1,807,000, mainly owing to the decrease
in shipments in the PRC and ASEAN markets due
to price competition. Revenue from MSG sales in
Japan, the US and Europe also modestly declined.
Although the Group adjusted the selling price of
some of the products upward in Vietnam hoping
to improve revenue, overall sales performance was
still lower than expected and affected the revenue
of MSG and seasonings-related products. Share
of these products in the Group’s total revenue
dropped from 66.0% in 2018 to 65.3%
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
2. Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

2.

Modified starch/Native starch/Maltose

The plague of pests on cassava plantations still
prevailed but improved somewhat during the year,
as the increase in costs of raw materials slowed
down. Regarding modified starch, native starch and
maltose products, through its effective procurement
strategy for cassava starch and the higher sales
of new organic products, the Group was able to
increase their selling prices and revenue. During
the year, revenue from modified and native starch
and maltose products climbed 4.9% year-on-year
or US$2,738,000 to US$58,866,000, accounting
for 16.4% of the Group’s total revenue, which
was 15.7% in 2018. The sales volume of modified
starch recorded higher growth in Japan, the PRC
and Vietnam through increasing market demand.
For maltose, the revenue from the US also climbed
considerably. Currently, the Group is actively
developing high value-added product categories
such as organic maltose and high-end modified
starch, promoting cross-sector applications and
strengthening cooperation through strategic
alliances and new product development to build
higher profit potential.

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products
Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are sold in the Vietnam market.
During the year, competition intensified for
basic chemical products due to international
trade factors. Revenue from specialty chemicals
amounted to US$24,682,000, down by 24.2% or
US$7,870,000, against 2018. The product segment
accounted for 6.9% of the Group’s total revenue,
versus 9.1% recorded in 2018. Soda products were
also affected by import price competition among
industry players, resulting in lower selling prices and
sales volume, and therefore a drop in revenue. The
sales volume of hydrochloric acid products declined,
owing to production and sales considerations
and competition with local manufacturers and
importers, thus revenue from the products also
decreased. The Group will complete the expansion
of hydrochloric acid plants in 2020, which will
enable it to provide more products with different
specifications to both meet internal needs and for
sale in the market.
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BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

2.

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

3.

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products
(continued)

The sales volume of fertilisers and feed products
fluctuated during the year. Overall, revenue of this
segment recorded growth despite the reduction in
overall sales volume as demand from Taiwan, Korea
and Europe continued to grow and selling prices
were set higher. The Group continued to promote
and develop high value-added special fertilisers and
feed products and attract new customers thanks
to products with new specifications. This direction
helped boost revenue of this business segment. The
Group's revenue from fertilisers and feed products
strongly increased by 15.2%, or US$3,223,000
year-on-year to US$24,388,000 and its contribution
its total revenue rose from 5.9% to 6.8%.

Other products

Other products mainly include trading products that
the Group distributes and sells in Vietnam and the
PRC. Revenue reached US$16,397,000, up 41.4%
or US$4,801,000 compared with 2018, making
up 4.6% of the Group’s total revenue, up from
3.3% in the past year. The growth in revenue was
attributable to the Group's efforts in setting up a
dedicated sales unit and its effective sales channel
integration strategy. Sales volume of coffee beans
and bulk food ingredients distributed in the PRC
also grew substantially and pushed up revenue.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(1)

(2)

Cassava

In the 2018/19 production season, the pest problem
in cassava plantations continued but was alleviated
eventually. In turn, this helped to slightly restore the
plantation areas in Vietnam, Thailand and Cambodia. The
price of cassava and starch raw materials also stabilised
when compared with 2018. Nevertheless, in 2020, the
cassava raw materials still faced challenges such as
stopping the spread of the epidemic, economic value
competition and global climate changes. Therefore, the
plantation areas remained limited, and consequently the
supply is expected to remain affected. The Group will
endeavor to select and consolidate its suppliers and forge
strategic partnerships as it adopts a flexible procurement
strategy in order to accurately ensure stable raw material
supply sources and pricing.

Molasses

The selling price of molasses in the international markets
plummeted due to the oversupply from molasses
production countries to the global molasses market in the
2018/2019 production season. According to the report
published by the International Sugar Organization, global
molasses output in 2019/2020 is expected to drop by 3.6
million tonnes to 61.1 million tonnes from the 2018/2019
production season. The decrease was mainly because
Brazil and Thailand used the majority of their sugar cane
crop to produce ethanol and restricted mass export of
sugar cane. Besides, as sugar cane farmers shifted to
plant higher-valued crops and the plantation areas in the
European Union and India shrank due to severe climate,
the molasses output in the US and Cuba was less than
expected. Owing to these factors, the selling price of
molasses in the international market showed an apparent
increase in the second half of the year, following the
relatively stable selling price in the first half of 2019.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(2)

(3)

Molasses (continued)

Meanwhile, starting from January 2020, Vietnam
abolished the quotas on sugar imports from the ASEAN
countries to Vietnam which could possibly lead to
a significant increase in those imports. As a result,
domestic sugar producers in Vietnam will face fierce
competition from the imported sugar products. Smaller
sugar refineries will generally operate in a difficult
business environment. As part of the Group's local
molasses procurement in Vietnam will be affected by such
circumstances, the Group will monitor and observe the
fluctuation of molasses supply and prices in the current
season, maintain a flexible procurement strategy and look
for alternative sugar sources in order to secure a reliable
raw material supply.

Energy

Global coal output maintained a slight growth trend in
2019 after returning to a recovery path for two years.
The selling price of coal in the international market slid
slightly due to the oversupply as a result of the contracted
demand in key markets such as the US and Europe.
Global oil prices surged in 2019 and recorded the largest
yearly growth within the past three years, mainly driven
by the geopolitical risks in the Middle East and further
output reduction by OPEC. According to the report by
the International Energy Agency (IEA), the world’s energy
landscape is changing. The rise of prices of natural gas
and renewable energy have grown rapidly, so downward
pressure on the coal market increases, with limited room
to climb recently. The Asian economies have experienced
rapid growth and hence will replace the western countries
as coal consumption markets. In particular, there is
surging demand in Vietnam and India. However, owing
to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic at the beginning of this year, the supply and
demand activities have slowed down. Whether this will
cause changes in the overall transportation and energy
industries is still worth observing.
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1ll. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(3)

Energy (continued)

Regarding the price of electricity, the retail electricity
tariff in Vietnam was raised by 8.36% in March 2019,
to cope with the rising power generation costs. This
adjustment has exerted pressure on the Vietnam
government'’s policies to drive economic growth and to
stabilise consumer prices. The Group for its part, uses a
cogeneration power generation system. As it mainly uses
self-generated electricity and relatively less purchased
electricity, the adjusted electricity tariff has limited impact
on the Group.

IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, and structured
bank deposits of US$59,400,000, US$955,000 or about
1.6% less than that at the end of 2018. Short-term bank
borrowings increased year-on-year by US$5,826,000
or about 63.5% to US$14,999,000. Medium-to-long-
term bank borrowings decreased by US$1,868,000, or
approximately 6.9%, to US$25,125,000. Total bank
borrowings were US$40,124,000, US$3,958,000 or
approximately 10.9% more than at the end of 2018.
The rise of total bank borrowing was mainly due to the
increased procurement of raw materials to ensure stable
raw material sources and prices and meeting capital
expenditure requirements. Of the total borrowings,
95.0% were denominated in US dollars and the
remaining 5.0% were denominated in New Taiwan
dollars. The proportions of short-term and medium-to-
long-term bank borrowings were 37.4% and 62.6%
respectively. Owing to the decreased interest rate for
Vietnam Dong deposits, net finance income for the year
fell by US$144,000 year-on-year.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

1. Liquidity and financial resources (continued)
Trade receivables were US$29,511,000, representing
a decrease of US$3,640,000 or around 11.0% when
compared with the end of 2018. Around 72.1% of
the trade receivables were aged within 30 days. Total
inventory was US$95,828,000, up by US$4,726,000 or
around 5.2% when compared with the end of 2018.
The increase in inventory was mainly attributable to the
growth in the Group’s raw materials for production and

finished products during the period.

As a result of the slightly increase in both total
borrowings and total equity, the Group’s gearing ratio
(total borrowings to total equity ratio) was 15.0%, higher
than the 12.6% recorded at the end of 2018. With cash
on hand exceeding borrowings, net gearing ratio (total
borrowings less cash and deposits to total equity ratio)
was —5.6%, higher than the -7.8% recorded in 2018.

During the year, current liabilities dropped significantly
due to the decrease of payables. Consequently, the
Group’s current ratio improved to 3.4 from 3.3 recorded
at the end of 2018 and its quick ratio similar to 1.8
recorded at the end of 2018. The Group maintained a

healthy financial structure/status.

2. Capital expenditure

During the year, capital expenditure amounted to
approximately US$17,769,000, US$7,751,000 less than
the capital expenditure of US$25,520,000 recorded in

2018.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

3.

Exchange rate

In 2019, although the trade friction between the PRC and
the US led to a decline in global trade and slow down
the export growth, Vietnam continued to report high
economic growth, thanks to stable foreign investment
and increased domestic consumption. Driven by these
factors, the exchange rate between the RMB and the US
dollar exceeded the 7.0 threshold. However, the exchange
rate between the Vietnam Dong and the US dollar
remained stable and unchanged, against the backdrop of
the rising pressure brought by the depreciating RMB. The
State Bank of Vietnam announced that the Vietnam Dong
depreciated 1.44% in 2019, from 22,825 Vietnam Dong
to USD1 at the end of 2018 to 23,155 Vietnam Dong
to USD1 at the end of 2019. Despite the expectation
that the global economy would continue to face various
unfavourable factors in 2020, the continued inflow of
foreign capital and robust export growth in Vietnam
contributed to optimism about economic prospects
of Vietnam. Its trade surplus is also beneficial to the
accumulation of foreign exchange reserves. Total foreign
exchange reserves during the year reached approximately
US$6.8 million. Vietnam managed to maintain a low
inflation rate, critical for ensuring a stable macroeconomy.
The Vietnam Dong is generally forecast to remain stable
in 2020.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly responsible
for local sales with transactions denominated in RMB. In
2018, the exchange rate between the RMB and the US
dollar initially appreciated followed by depreciation. After
the RMB exchange rate rebounded to 6.7 in the first half
of 2019, it fell below 7 in August and once dropped to
the lowest point of close to 7.2, and then bounced back
to around 6. The exchange rate for the full year of 2019
depreciated around 1.65%, still far less than the 5.04%
in 2018. Trade disputes between the PRC and the US
remain a key factor that affects the RMB exchange rate.
According to some experts, if the tariff can be abolished
gradually, the RMB exchange rate in 2020 will likely
remain between 6.7 and 7.2. However, the outbreak
of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020 has increased
the downside risks for economic growth. As such, the
Group will continue to monitor the exchange rate trends
between the RMB and the US dollar.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

4. Earnings per share and dividends
Basic earnings per share were 1.02 US cents for the
year. The Board has resolved to declare payment of a
final dividend of 0.214 US cents per share. The dividend
payout ratio was 60%.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2020, the world’s economies will continue
to be affected by Brexit and the Sino-US trade disputes,
alongside the uncertainties such as geopolitical conflicts in the
Middle East, the US presidential election and the effects of
the COVID-19 outbreak. Overall economic recovery may slow
down. According to the observation of economic experts, there
would only be a weak growth in global trade this year. Despite
an ongoing oversupply of the production capacity of many
products, price cut competition in the market is expected to
continue. Moreover, the Group may face rising costs of some
of its raw materials due to supply shortages. Amid the fast-
changing business environment, the Group will remain prudent
while actively responding to the fluid situation and continuously
strengthen the cooperation with upstream and downstream
enterprises in innovation, implement new marketing strategies
for development and adopt various effective measures to meet
its profitability target.

In recent years, the Group has adopted various measures to
fortify its foundation, including improving production efficiency,
lowering production costs, securing stable raw material
supplies, developing new product markets and new clientele,
establishing strong customer relationships and boosting
development overseas. These efforts have started to bear
fruit. Looking ahead, though the operating environment will
continue to be uncertain, the Group will continue to forcefully
implement its planned development strategies, strengthen its
operations and enhance its competitiveness so as to raise its
operational efficiency. These strategies include:

° Bolstering the utilisation and mix of product lines with
a focus on core products, aiming to raise the proportion
of high value-added and high-end products and reduce
that of low gross profit items, therefore increasing profit
generated by products to a reasonable level.
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V.

PROSPECTS (continued)

Actively developing new products, expanding new market
businesses, and enhancing market positioning and brand
competitiveness; enlarging the scale of its operations
through forging new partnerships and adjusting business
structure; at the same time, further developing current
market channels and relationships with customers, giving
full play to its brand value, all to the end of strengthening
the Group’s overall business performance.

Capturing the price trends of bulk raw materials and
energy prices, diversifying sources of procurement
and implementing procurement plans in line with its
procurement strategy.

Continuing to improve production technology and
product quality, raising production efficiency to maximise
effectiveness of its production equipment, increasing
capital expenditure on expanding production capacity of
products with potential, and also continuing to source
alternative energy solutions to lower operational costs.

Accelerating the consolidation and use of the Group’
s resources and the innovation breakthroughs from
its business strategies, continuing to strengthen its
cooperation with strategic partners in order to improve
efficiency; gearing up for developing customised
products, focusing on those third-party products with
development potential and bolstering its product channels
and marketing strategies so as to meet consumers’ needs.

Adopting the co-opetition strategy to boost its
competitiveness and use its production base in Vietnam
to actively develop the ASEAN market and the markets
which are signatories of the Free Trade Agreement (FTA),
The European Union-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement
(EVFTA) and Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement
for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP), with the goal of
developing new businesses with competitive advantages.

Continuing to extend its trade network in ASEAN
countries, stepping up expansion of the segment related
to its core businesses, extending its marketing network
and broadening its brand influence, eventually expanding
its business presence, so as to create new growth
streams.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

° Strengthening its customer relationship management
and online marketing tools, utilising data analysis and
consolidating customers’ information and incorporating
such information with its marketing strategy and boosting
performance through diversified marketing channels, in a
bid to increase the value and satisfaction of customers.

° Through enhancing financial management, optimising
capital utilisation, reducing operational costs and
maximising the value of the Group; taking steps to
manage working capital to mitigate foreign exchange
and interest rate fluctuation risks so as to cope with the
increasingly turbulent international financial conditions.

Looking into the future, in the face of the unfavourable
conditions around the world and the uncertainties of its
operating environment, the Group will formulate flexible
and diversified action plans for its operations, enhance its
organisational and management strengths, constantly change
its mindset and consolidate its strategic approach as required
to maintain competitiveness and cooperation. Although
many challenges lie ahead, the Group believes there are also
development opportunities in the market. It will capitalise on
Vietnam’s economic growth trend and economic advantages in
the region and move forward building on its existing business
foundation. The Group will remain prudent in its business
management, set the marketing trends and review and
implement its strategies to leverage its integrated operational
strengths and achieve further business development and
advances.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s
business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications
and strong brand recognition, one of the
Group’s most important and well-guarded
assets. Its renowned “Vedan” brand
MSG, for example, is considered essential
throughout the food processing industries
across Asia for its role in enhancing the
flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and
enjoys a huge and constantly growing
market throughout Vietnam, the PRC,
ASEAN countries, Japan and the United
States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAUE[BN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 77, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial
Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately
57 years' working experience in the MSG industry and is one of
the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion
Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 65, an Executive Director of the Company, has
been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 44 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Taiwan
Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr.
YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan Culture and
Education Foundation and Wanpao Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
the president of Fongle Real Estate Co., Ltd., the commissioner
of Industrial Development and Investment Promotion Committee
of Taichung City, the Executive director of New Taiyuan Urban
Development Association and the supervisor of Taichung Culture &
Education Foundation. Mr. YANG, Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree
from Xiamen University in the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 62, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the Group’
s operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 33 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 56, an Executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. He is also a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
has approximately 26 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is responsible for coordinating our purchase
activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen obtained a bachelor degree in
mechanics in 1993 from Waseda University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 60, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
38 years’ working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director and Vice
President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai)
and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou also
holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28 June 2006.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 66, a Non-executive Director, member of
the Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan Vedan.
Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and
statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 42 years’ experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 59, a Non-executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2006. Mr. CHOU is the Supervisor of
Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shin-
Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder member
of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant of Wincome
Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
He has over 20 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU
obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master
of Law degree from East China University of Political Science and Law
and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 58, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor
degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow
University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the
University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of
Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also a director
of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui Industrial Co.,
Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and the Independent Non-
executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd (an emerging-
stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr.
CHAO has approximately 30 years' experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 59, an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee, as well
as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2004. Mr. KO graduated with a Bachelor of
Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and subsequently
obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting from the
University of Delaware, USA. Mr. KO has been the executive partner
of Weyong International CPAs & Co., Certified Public Accountants
in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO is also the Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue
Development Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. KO is currently a director of
Taichung Season Arts Education Foundation, Taiwan.
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EX SAEEERQAUE[BN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 60, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company since
2008. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the Eastern lllinois State University, and a Bachelor Degree from
the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN is presently the Chairman of
Ray Wing Research and Investment Corporation and also a supervisor
of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd., the Independent Non-executive Director
of Kayee International Group Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. Chen has more than
32 years of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong, aged 64, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2018. Mr. Huang holds a bachelor’s degree in
electrophysics and a master's degree in management science from
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Mr. Huang is currently a
technical expert in the rank of adjunct associate professor at the
department of transportation & logistics management of National
Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also the president of Citpo
Technologies Inc. Mr. Huang was the founder secretary general of
Chinese Professional Management Association of Hsinchu, Taiwan
and was the chairman of Provision International Inc. and Ecom
Software Inc. Mr. Huang was the president of Taiwan Regional
Operations of Acer Inc. and Lottery Technology Service Corporation.
Mr. Huang was the vice president of Quality Assurance, ITGO,
Acer Inc. Mr. Huang was also an adjunct assistant professor in the
Department of Industrial Engineering and Management of National
Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 54, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Executive Vice President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice
President, is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon, major in finance and
marketing, and holds a master degree in business administration
from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993,
and was the senior manager of financial department, vice manager
of business and foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special
assistant to the chairman, project manager of finance department of
Taiwan Vedan as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch.
Mr. NI has full qualification in finance, marketing and executive
administration, and has accumulated approximately 27 years of
working experience.

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 69, Chief Strategy Officer of Vedan
Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National Cheng Kung
University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH is responsible
for the strategic development and functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 40 years of finance management and banking
experience. Mr. HSIEH was financial vice president of Vedan Vietnam
and worked for several financial institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam
including International Bank of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr.
HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh
City Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in
Gia Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 56, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 30 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 69, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company’s amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 32 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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EX SAEEERQAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 58, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’
s specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated
from National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG,
Tzu-Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager
of international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined
Vedan Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 29 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 57, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 31 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 52, General Manager of the Group in
Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-Ren
School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 24 years'’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.
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EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 46, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 19 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 44, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and Investor
Services. Ms. WONG has over 21 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field and has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational,
private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a Chartered Secretary
and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries ("HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ICSA") in the United Kingdom. Ms. Wong is a holder
of the Practitioner's Endorsement from HKICS. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor Services Limited as external service provider and
appointed Ms. WONG as the Company’s company secretary since 1
April 2012.)

EREERE ()

BREXE 465 AEERESRAIRE &
EZARNG EBRTREERS T EZEE-
BHRELEZERBEIAEARS BELARTRE
REL B WREREMNNZASES T AT
BEITEM - BHRELENBRALRE LK
RBREMERZES - BREXAER-_ZTT—F
MABBKS CEEBEREEDS BEE I
MM EE  BMRESAAALTEEGES D
AR - B RIELETERBEEESIPIERT
B BBI9OFEELS -

NFWE

BEERLLT 45 RRPEZEBBARAA
(I2E]) CERBRES - S EREHUNE
ERBAR REFREEH EREREER
ARG - BERITREERBEBEFR _T—F
K —ERBELWAR UREBEEAR ML
ARRIEBERARREREENCERE Bt
REFWE URBBRHFWEAE(IHKICS])
REBFEAMERTHRABRG([ICSANE

REL BEREINMHARBBRIANERAGHY
MBEERAER (F ARFEBREERI

EREHERE T ——_FMHMA—HRBREEE
L RARBNRBME )

Annual Report 2019 F %

37



Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company’'s effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2019, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED") and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
requirement of having sufficient number of INEDs representing one-
third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other directors
and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 34.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’'s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Senior Management remuneration by band are set out in Note 30 to
the accounts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and high-
leveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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Environmental protection management for production cycle:
Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

Occupational safety and hygiene management for production
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate

improvement measures.

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group
stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2019 are as follows:

Date of Course

Name of Course

FERRZRAREEE KEBEZERE
BEHERER FEZARBREREH
R WHRBEEMGE W7 BERS
BRI R ERE I ABRERRRE
MEE-

HEBRRZBERE2HLETE -HYHREY
BEBERZESTEEETRNSME
B I ESKER R AE B BRI RT B E R

AEBBERETHEAER2019FEBEERB
JiZ/CENE

Hour of Study

EiEBEH REER EBEH

2019/03/22 Regulations for Loan Procedures 2
EREERE®

2019/05/27 Measure on Receipts and Payments through Bank 2
BBRITE NREEIOER

2019/05/28 Training Courses on Personal Income Tax 2
B AFTE R B IRRIZ

2019/06/15 Introduction to the New Requirements of Legal Provisions 2
MBERIGESNRTE

2019/08/27 Introduction of Method for Establishing Cost Attachment 2
ARSI AR 89 77 0%

2019/10/12 Update on the Relevant Requirements as Revised under the 2019 Tax Law 2
S RT2019F BE PR E AR B H0 3R E

2019/11/27 Calculation of Cost and Financial Report in SAP System 2

FESAPR BT ERA R MEIEE

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

AEBETEBRIBAER2019FEIEHEEE

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2019 are as follows: T

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EiEBEH REEB EBRH

2019/01/14 Training on Tax Law App-based Declaration 2
% App R R HI

2019/06/17 Continuous Education on Accounting in Songjiang District 24
MIRGHEERE

2019/08/19 Continuous Education on Accounting in Xiamen District 12
EfmetEgERE

2019/11/18 Training for Internal Auditor on Industrialization and Informatization 2

Integration

MCEA AT EET
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Company, the qualification and experience of staff members and
the training programmes participated by the staff members and the
relevant budgets. The Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are adequate and effective.
The Group will, from time to time, review its risk management and
internal control system in order to optimise its effectiveness and
in turn heighten the overall corporate governance standard of the
Group.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

REEFEARN  2BEFCBHANEE AP
RO BREAR A& RIS ERB
HHNER BTEERER URBIMERH
RIS LEES EFER/AKENRARE
BERARERRSEHRER - EEBT R
REiREREFEAMEERR FEARUEERT
B OARTEEBEOEERKF -

L& L gy

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HER/&ERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Ezg EiHERE yHzEg RE#ZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HTES
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GBIk (LE) 4/4 N/AT A NATE R i 0/
YANG, Cheng 5 3/4 NAT & NATE NATE 0/
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) GE (7TR#%) 4/4 NAT @ NATE A NATE 111
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 N/ATE N/ATE NATE A 0/1
YANG, Kun-Chou Bl 3/4 NATER NAT R NATE R 0/
Non-executive Directors FUTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BER 4/4 NAT B 17 NATE A 0/
CHOU, Szu-Cheng ABE 414 NATER /AT R N/ATE 0/1
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

CHAO, Pei-Hong HEE 414 ) 17 111 111
KO, Jim-Chen ik 4/4 22 17 111 /1
CHEN, Joen-Ray Rad 414 W 10 0 0/1
HUANG, Chung-Fong i 3/4 Wy /AT NATE R 0/1
Notes: BT -

Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting
right on the first board meeting. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou authorized Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang to exercise the voting right on the third board meeting. Mr.
HUANG, Chung-Fong authorized Mr. KO, Jim-Chen to exercise the voting right
on the second board meeting.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to the company secretary.

BELAEREGBEEEENE - RESTEERTER
RIE-BEMEEREGHELEENE=RESES
BITER R -HEREERENEEEERE R
EFeeRTERRE-

EEEA

g CEEEIATAD BT RIRIA.6.50K - AAF]
PRESHAEBNERMEEREE TEN
FHEANNBERRXENERIL EHEME R
e

EREFCEAARMERHENEE TN
FT_A=T - BFEANFIRH-
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 TO LISTING RULES

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with
the exception of code provision E.1.2.

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2019 due
to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr.
CHAO, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and Mr. CHOU,
Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HUANG,
Chung-Fong were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$355,000
and US$4,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2019. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 114 to 121.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

INTRODUCTION

Following the “Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C" in
2018, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
under the United Nations released the “Special Report on Ocean
and Cryosphere in Changing Climate” (SROCC) in September
2019, warning that global warming is continuously destroying the
environment of oceans and frozen areas. This means that extreme
weather events will happen frequently, and coastal cities in all
countries and small island nations will have to beware of severe
floods. This report also confirms the world’s most worrying issue: the
climate crisis is also a marine crisis. Every government and industrial
sector will have to step up their efforts to curb carbon emissions and
take more measures to protect oceans, so as to mitigate the threat of
climate change to humans, environment and economy.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to the issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. The committee members practically
promote environmental education with combination of regional
production and sales strategy and the concept of environmental
protection and earth preservation and implements sustainable
environment plans with regular meetings to review the achievements
under the respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully
discloses the implementation of CSR. We will implement the
corporate governance policy in accordance with the laws and strive to
achieve the most outstanding operating efficiency of the Group with
an aim to realise mutual benefit with the environment.
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RE - #HEREREE

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

R KERENES  PELHEEEHRKARE
SEME BRTBEIRERE ERHEHEZ
SR EREHAGAEERRER RHE
T-—EZ2REESUTNHEREB NN THER
BOUREBT TP fER REARMERE
BER2OGMNE RAAESHEEBRITE
ENEEEL DBELENRE BEREBELS
WIRRIEREZZRANIE

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in Factory Areas with
Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology
FEEEREN - UEBRERETIRARL  REEEREBRERE

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

AREFRKBEBE A X PP LT R BN
T rrE GRIE e RERWmEESD) RN
B (ERERTAD 2RAUBIT-—REESR
F-ARERENERBHELT

Period covered
R B

From 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
P T2019F1 A1HE2019612H31H

Areas covered

T S covered by Vedan International Group

The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of branches in Taiwan

AR EERENE hTRHEEEMRAEN DAL ERY
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RE HERERBHRS

{ENVIRONMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting park-
like construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

o Employee safety, environmental protection and resource
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission
of exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or
overachieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws
of the places where its production bases are located and
the requirements of internal standards.

o The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

o In 2019, the emission standard of each emission of the
Group was in line with the requirement of environmental
impact assessment for all production bases. The Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) reformed
the concentration system in production plants in 2019
for the purpose of reducing the consumption of steam
energy. In addition, enhancing the connection of various
wastewater treatment systems and the collection of
various types of wastewater is also expected to achieve
better water pollution prevention and pollution-free
discharge.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIERE (8)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)

(continued)

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-ZBHRLEK BEREESE

wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

° According to the statistics, the types of emissions
produced in the production process of the primary plants
in 2019 and the relevant data are set out below:

Wz PR ()

. R 20095 X EHREEBRRE
ZHRYERREES YT

2018 2019 Difference Unit

Type of emissions ERYER 20185 20194 £ER By

Total volume of wastewater fEkE HFWE (ijﬁﬁ) 5.06 5.57 10.24% mé/ton
discharged (m3)/product output JERES (DIE) SAK/ B
(ton)

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BEA—{LBELEE(COD) (AfT) 8.23 8.69 5.56% kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product JERES (D) NN ]
output (ton)

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (SOX) TR -FREHSOx (B fT) 5.43 5.18 (4.65%) kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) JERES (D) NN

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOX) | Z= &I — ﬁ@b%NOx (Af) 3.42 3.65 6.76% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) JERES (D) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission MERER %M&zi 833,145.11 854,248.28 2.53% ton COze

NMECOe

Total emission intensity of REREBANNERE 1.26 1.34 6.94% | ton COze/ton

greenhouse gas AMIC0r/
NI

Total hazardous waste BEREYES 138,518.11 73,022.48 (47.28%) kg fT

Total non-hazardous waste BEEENES 41,297,140 42,354,830 2.56% kgA T

Hazardous waste intensity BEBEENEE 0.21 0.11 (45.02%) kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) (BDF/PEERES) NN

Non-hazardous waste intensity ﬂif?%@“ﬁ 62.22 66.56 6.97% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) AN/ ABERES) NN ]
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIRGFE (#])
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-ZBHRLPEK BREESE

wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) Yz BERR ()
Explanations on major differences in 2019 as compared to 20195F HBER2018F 2 E BRI -
2018:
Difference
Types of Emissions HBNER #& | Explanation for difference EEHH
Total volume of wastewater BKBHNE (T k) / 10.24% | In order to improve the collection of various | BEZZBEKZKE AEER2D
discharge (m?)/product output EMEE (BH) types of wastewater, the Company used ATHE LERZEERTK TEHE
(tons) pipelines to send all the domestic sewage EEKREREEEGREN BR4

in its administrative area and production ABKBAZGENAE SAENE
area to a sewage treatment plant with an ERAAEK REE08FAL B
increase in wastewater treatment volume fIEmBTESE 2 EKE £F110.24% o
this year. In addition, the Company retested
the high ammonia nitrogen wastewater
denitrification system and increased the
daily treatment of high ammonia nitrogen
wastewater. As a result, the amount of
wastewater generated by unit products
increased by 10.24% as compared with that

for 2018.

Wastewater - chemical oxygen Bk-t2Z4E2(COD) 5.56% | COD in 2018: 333TON/month; COD in 2018%C0D :333T0N,/ A : 20195
demand (COD) (kg)/product (AfT)/EmES 2019: 345TON/month. Increase in the COD :345TON/ B - R¥E &5 L ER
output (tons) () domestic sewage with high pollution ZEERK (MEIFAKELERS) -

concentration (such as toilet wastewater EHEKCODEE Lo
and septic tanks) resulted in the increase in
the COD concentration of wastewater.

Air emissions - sulfur oxides SOx EREH-HE/PSOx (4.65%) | The NOx concentration in 2019 was higher | 2019FNOxZ £ 82018 FNOX)Z & 38

(kg)/product output (tons) (AFT)/EnER than that in 2018. The reason is that, MAE017EE RANFENER
(20E) since 2017, the Company began to use an %ﬂ ? E@% Em]f?@ﬁﬁ;}; %ﬁfﬁ%%i
it emissions — el =& o | automatic monitoring device for chimney BB ERZ NOX

AI;SQS?%;S)NOX (kglfproduct Iéﬁg?% %ﬁ%gmx 6.76% exhausts. The monitoring device was not EREREEARE FRHERE 35(

(28 stable, and could only record the NOX value mzowﬁzowﬁm HIERER
: in exhaust emissions. As the device had a BARER

calibration detection error, there was a data
deviation. The NOx concentration in 2019
was higher than that in 2018, which was
mainly due to the detection error value of

the device.

In view of the above, the Company started | 7 L+ 5% AINOX&SOXE 2018 F & A
to use the automatic monitoring data for BEHENYE TRRLNEERAR
the air emissions of NOx and SOx from ERBMZER NHUHRLE HA
2018, and temporarily replaced the results | 2019F & BERTRER G ERA

of the previous environmental test report, WBARARAREE ER -
which caused the occurrence of this
situation. Therefore, a new version of data
statistical model has been used from 2019
to meet the Company's current situation
and ensure the truthfulness of data.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIRGRE (W)
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation BER BERR KELE (B
(continued)

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-BHARLEK BRERESE

wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) Yz Bk (5)
Difference .
Types of Emissions BHNEE £ | Explanation for difference EXEL

Density of total greenhouse gas RERBRANBHE 6.94% | As the repair time of coal boilers in 2019 R20195 K R B 7 2 B 820185
emissions was longer than that in 2018, the Company | &' ABREZEEE. E@E}E%E&E
used heavy oil boilers and gas hoilers HIRE - RERN ERERERAN
to ensure continuous production. Such HeEREEN MYERERELS

adjustment increased the use of heavy oil HE-

and natural gas, and thus affected total
greenhouse gas emissions.

Total non-hazardous wastes BZEENEE 6.97% | 1. The sediments in barrels and tanks 1. F018ERETRMUEI0ARE R
were cleared for a total of three EERG=MA ’Flﬁ ﬁﬂ-iﬁ Ll
months (including the slotting time of fB¥A) 201 9¢ 5 1 AR
approximately one and a half months) BEEI4A M E ?E g2
from October in 2018, while the clearing Em ERES % bbbt
time was from January to April in 2019 e

and was longer. The increase in volume
resulted in a relative increase in this non-
hazardous waste.

2. As the Company started to outsource 2. E018F R BERRT AR s
the clearance of fly ash and hottom ash ZINBE 20195 Z)NEERE A
from July 2018, the time of outsourced 1ARZEI10ARIE BESEM  EK
clearance was from January to October LB ESEENEHIEM-
in 2019, and the increase in clearance
volume resulted in a relatively increase in
this non-hazardous waste.

3. The Company has officially put into 3. 2020501 A+ QEEVX?\%M
production the non-fired bricks from BRfLE Eﬁ% 28D RINEE
January 2020, which will reduce the RZEEE.
amount of fly ash & bottom ash for
clearance.
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RIE -HEBREBRE

BIRGRE (W)
BR - BERE KELYE (H)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy 2 EREREE-EDEHERE EREWK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BF A
resources

The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalize
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

In 2019, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

The Group proactively implements the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in the
concentration process of production and reuse the same
in the production process. The amount of condensation
that can be recycled for every ton of products in 2019
was lower than that in 2018, as the heavy use of high
ammonia nitrogen condensation in the fermentation
process would reduce the performance of fermentation,
therefore, the recycling rate of condensation was reduced
in consideration of the Company’s operating performance
with the increase in capacity of the high ammonia
nitrogen wastewater treatment system; nevertheless, the
Company has planned to recycle the discharged water
after treated in the wastewater treatment plant from
2020 to reduce the amount of discharged water and the
discharge per unit of products.

£ BT 8 E# {T3RB K (Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle) &R E U AHFA -
AERR DB RFEREZ BE -

R RBBORE R  REHER
BARSIRIBEN 2 EE -

E B H1TISO 50001 8ERE B R4
AXE2EEEMBEVRERERSE
WK EEREIELZES  ABNRAR
LEBRMMERZIERE  UHE
BT ER AR A R - 30 E B B RS RUAK BT
2 REFEFEEESENL  BREEFRRAR

o

&

2019 £ B = 2 4 = A bb il 7 R &
HAEERNRIRRERGETHE
PR SR RE A - RIS AR A2 Al
KERE-

SEBEGETEREWEFBZ K
RBEERBRABHRMEELEZAR
RK - B ERIREEA - 20196 F
WA /9 2 &R AT (B 4R 75 O R K B
2018F K RAABEBAEFAR
[RRENK  FESHEKE T
ZENRKENRSRAEKERE
Rz FIRIgE - 15 EIL R KE
FAERTR BAFEREN2020
F B Y BE 0K BE 3 R R B 18 2 BE UK
BB A - ABRREIEZ 2 HE0K
ENBUERZHERE-

Annual Report 2019 F %

55



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) RIBHRE (18)
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)
(continued)
(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy 2 ERFEHAEE-EDHRRE EREWK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BRA (&)
resources (continued)
In 2019, the packaging materials used by the primary . 2019@‘*.1;11??51@ HFEFE
production bases of the Group in the production process MR ABREMEA S5 RKE
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper ”7 e e ZERE - NG

bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2019, the recycling
rate reached 89.8%, higher than that of 78.2% in 2018,
and representing the higher recycling rate of plastic
cylinders.

The total consumption of energy used in the primary

M &K @ P 2 B = U B F
FA BRIE AT REE TSR
ZHBBRETEKER A 20196
Fat 2 B EEZ89.8% @ 820184
782% = - REREB MRS B EF
Rz k-

o 2009 F B A EEMERFHRAR

production bases in 2019 is as follows: SR
2018 2019 Difference Unit

Types of usage ERESR 20185 20195 R B

Indirect energy — Unit consumption HZeR-ENEMRAE 699.73 718.90 3% kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BENBR2E(TRE) TR,/
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (RH)) NI
output (ton))

Indirect energy - Unit consumption of | R EEMBENAE 76.47 78.14 2% kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (EERBERE (RT) NN
(kg)/production output (ton)) JEREE (RHE))

Direct energy — Unit consumption of | EEfEFE-HREMLEE 418.32 425.36 2% kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (Ex@emE(Dfr)/ NN ]
production output (ton)) EmES (RB))

Total water consumption ‘EEkE 8,205,465 8,370,524 2.01% m3 i K

Water consumption intensity FKEE (BRKE (NAK) 12.36 13.16 6.40% m3/ton
(total water consumption (m3)/ JEREE (D)) VA AN
production output (ton))
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RE - HEREREE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

BIRGFE (8])
BR - BERE KELYE (H)

(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy 2 ERFEHEE-HIHREERE EREWY
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BRA (&)
resources (continued)
2018 2019 Difference Unit
Types of usage TRER 20185 20195 =R By
Total packaging materials used EROBENHNEE AR 54,146 52,982 (2.15%) kg D fF
- FIBC bags
Total packaging materials used FRNARMHEZE-BE 436,027 424,297 (2.69%) kg D fF
— Paper bags
Total packaging materials used FRNEXMHEE-HE 4,099,035 3,389,562 (17.31%) kg AT
- Carton boxes
Total packaging materials used FRNBENHNAZE-2BR 577,887 461,936.73 (20.06%) kg D fF
- Plastic cylinders
Intensity of packaging materials used | FRMBENHEE - KER 5.06 5.19 2.55% kg/ton
~ FIBC bags INIWN|
Intensity of packaging materials used | (FRMBENHEE K& 10.25 10.25 1.16% kg/ton
— Paper bags TN
Intensity of packaging materials used | FERRNBENHEE - HHE 70.34 70.34 0.69% kg/ton
— Carton boxes ININ|
Intensity of packaging materials used | FRRNBENHEE - BRBH 40.64 40.64 2.59% kg/ton
— Plastic cylinders ININ|
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RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIRGRE (W)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation IR BERR KELE (B

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy 2 ERFEHAEE-EDHRRE EREWK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BRA (&)

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2019 as compared to 20195 MHER2018F 2 F EE R -
2018:
Difference
Types of usage EREE £ | Explanation for difference EEHB
Indirect energy - Unit consumption | & RE-ENEUAE 3% | 1. The Company's unit power usage | 1. EIZHRWESP: BEKEEZHLEMER
of electricity (total electricity (Enamz (TR E) increased with the introduction of WESP, RIEBRIE EXARENELRA
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (RH)) wastewater treatment system and other BEmM-
output (ton)) environmental protection facilities.

2. We reviewed the rationality of energy
consumption monthly, and set the
baseline of energy consumption for each
product in accordance with 150 50001.

2. tﬂw LRENEREZARN
T KIS0 500015 TR BER 28
FER-

Indirect energy - Unit consumption
of biofuel (total biofuel
consumption (kg)/production

2% | 1. The equipment of the by-product
processing plant was under maintenance
from January to March 2019, and

1. 201950103 AR ER M LHR B %
3 %z%uwr@ EmEHE
ETH EREETMES-

resulted in a significant increase in the
demand for water.

2. We prepared a water balance chart
every month and reviewed the rationality
of water consumption/wastewater
discharge/amount of water recycled to
prevent occurrence of abnormal events.

output (ton)) gradually resumed from the second
quarter, leading to a decline in
production and energy saving below
expectations.
2. We reviewed the rationality of energy | 2. AR ERENEREZ AR
consumption monthly, and set the WA BRISO 50001 I §IEER 2 8
baseline of energy consumption for each RER-
product in accordance with 150 50001.

Direct energy - Unit consumption | EfsiR-RREMFAE 6.40% | 1. The duration of maintenance in 2019 | 1. $¢F RENER0IFNS XA
of coal (total coal consumption (BreBg(Rr)/ was approximately 15 days longer than A BREMER (NI 24) %
(kg)/production output (ton)) EREE(RE)) that in 2018, as a result, we had to turn B RELENG RERGRE

to alternative energies i.e. gas and heavy EERER-
oil, for power generation, which was
relatively less efficient.

2. We reviewed the rationality of enerqy | 2. AR ERENEREZ AR
consumption monthly, and set the T fKFRISO 500015 BEER 28
baseline of energy consumption for each REg.
product in accordance with 150 50001.

Water consumption intensity RKBE (BFEKE 6.40% | 1. The leakage of the environmental | 1. 20195 RHHABREN L2 EF B
(total water consumption (m3)/ (Ihk)/ERES protection accident testing pool with a BREFAERAN ENERKER
production output (ton)) (M) ) considerable storage capacity in 2019 BLFe

2. BRYEKTER WAHWRKE/
BKHERE /MUK S a8 )
EREEFEMHEE
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RE HERERBHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management -
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring
for environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the
ISO 50001 energy management system certificate in
October 2016. We established an impeccable equipment
maintenance and examination system through a high
standard certification inspection. The usage of energy
consuming equipment has been gradually optimised,
which facilitated reasonableness and efficiency of energy
consuming equipment and reduced energy costs.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources,
which conserved energy and reduced consumption and
brought significant meanings to earth preservation. This
equipment was put into trial production at the end of
2019, and is not yet put into production officially.

BIRGRE (W)
BR - BERE KELYE (H)

(3)

BERARREREE-RBARREAN
2 EERRREARER

RBEEZRERE HRERREER
—fL T REEREEEMBRER
[% 2 72016510 H BX451SO 50001
REREERGZRE BBSFREN
REEZ EUTENREREED
B HIE - R P E AR
RfERBFERE A IRRUR T FR1KRE
IRAA

KEHEERMIERREELZ
TR fFEEERREERERT RN
B EEREAER BN  ZHROE
PRI T TR AR - BHE
BREHREZESLERATERS
Y EE T IR - £
PHRUERERRBFRERBEHR -

S2EFBRRRE LR SEBER
REREZHSRABIHRSNA
FBIE - B B TH IR RE R AR
g REREER LHERESRR
ZHEGEE  HEERARRRH

5 o

EETBEEEMBERER2017
FHRIRE R BEERE  BERRE Y
BRRDBREAREERELDIE
PR KB EBRERRE AR
BEEMBIA MAZSERIER
fir g M E R B FI A - BIREPEFE - IR
ETHEABSANERE  ILRER
2019 R IEX R E - BRTH AR ER
B~
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RIBE -HEREBRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) BIRGRE (W)
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation WK BERIR KEKLE (&)

(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management - B) RERAREREE-REALREAN
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring Z - BERBREBARLERL (H)

for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

No.
HR

In 2019, the primary production bases of the Group
organised a total of 102 training courses in relation to
environmental safety and hygiene with 3,916 participants
and the average training hours were 7.63 hours per
person every year. The contents of the courses are
summarised as follows:

019 KB EEHERBHIRFEL
EEHEHBHEIRBRRE1025
WA IKAE3,916 A FHE A £
R AT 63/ F HRREAR
BEAT

Course Name

REEH

Total

o

Groups 1 — 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements

BlREk v B E1-67IRE K

Industrial Safety Management and Practice for Foreign Workers

INERBIELEERRET

Learning ISO 14001/I1SO 45001 Environmental Management System, Occupational Safety and Hygiene
Management System/Internal Inspector

ISO 14001/ISO 45001 RIRER R G BELRBFLEBERRHRH,NHEZE

Chemical Drugs Safety Course

{t 28R T 2RI

Waste Management and Resources Recycle Course

FEERMERR  BIREWERE

Safety of Gas Welder and Electric Welder

w2 BRERZ

Operation Safety of Loading Equipment and Stacking Machine

MmHRE EeRETEE

Electricity Safety

AEZ2

Operation in Dust Area

M EE [ 19 fE 2

Safety Training for Operation in Limited Space and Overhead Operation

ZERIRERRERMEERBEMEE

Total training hours Total participation Average training hours
for the year of employees

2 F AT REFH BB EANR ETFHIZINEH
29,865 (hours) 3,916 (persons) 7.63 (hours/year)

29,865 (/M) 3,916( A) 7.63(/NEF6F)
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RIE -HEBREBRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

BIRGFE (#])
BR - BERE KELYE (H)

(4) Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement 4 MEABBRERRLRES

e The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the . SEFrZ4AEEWBEREREEE
Group) implements the Environmental Management MEITIRIBEIE R4 (S0 14001)" B
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety ¥ LT HEEE ZH(OHSAS18001/
Management System (OHSAS18001/ISO 45001) and ISO 45001)E 2R E 2 Z £ (15O
Energy Management System (ISO 50001) every year, and 50001) THARRR KR HEHTZEER
regularly reviews the progress and effectiveness of all BATROR W E K - FER
plans and proactively improves the deficiencies in order EUSRERBREE /AT A RR
to continuously improve and govern with high-standard 5o
international regulations and conduct self-reflection.

. In 2019, in respect of all laws related to environmental . 2019 £ BT ARAHEELE LR
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of BZER -BRK BENS &Fa
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national BEEEEMZBIRELE-
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.

. In 2019, the external inspection and environmental . 019 X ZAEEMRBELZ2HE
examination in respect of environmental safety and T B8 IR SN EPTE 1% B IR IR AR08 S AT a0
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are T~
as follows:

No. Name Result
HIR =8 #R
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
F—FIRBERA e
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001&0HSAS18001) Pass
FEHMNEPFEAZ(1SO14001&0OHSAS18001) ik
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
E RN e
4 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Qualified
FE I EBFEAZ (SO 50001) 1%
5 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Pass
E=FREWA BB
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
E IR aig
Note: The Group's production bases in China and business B EEPEHEEEELSERSZ

footholds in Taiwan are principally engaged in sales
and light industry trade. The primary production base
of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.

BT EAHEREES AT &
Er X EBHEELMAMER QA
BEMRE 2 RFEVEEEIRE
BAMBRE S AE -
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BRE HERERES

{SOCIETY)
EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the goal
of “building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’ benefits”
through three measures, namely “full compliance with the labour
laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness of the
working environment and proactive implementation of employees’
training and communication”, which help build a sound labour-
employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the Group
and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.
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RIE -HEBREBRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

RIFHAERR (K)
BE BUSEME BESTERN (E)

(1) Employment principles — Fair employment conditions, (1)
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued) N (&)
° In 2019, the Group had 3,713 employees in aggregate. °

The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and
geographic region is set out below:

20195 5B 8 T 812£3,7130 + BA
THRE MR e B D NS WHE
HESmALE:

ERRA-AFPRERHEAGRESEZ

Total number

Male in Female in of employees
The Group’s primary base each region each region in each region
EEXTEEN EEBEBI EEXZET EEBIHY
The Vietnam plant i/ B & 2,894 625 3,519
The China plant # B9/ [& 116 65 181
Foothold in Taiwan & /& & 24 7 6 13

Total average
resignation
rate of male
staff per month

Total average
resignation
rate of female
staff per month

Total average
resignation
rate per month

58T ZBTI | of eachregion

The Group's primary base REERE ABR=E EERAERE
EEXEEH HEig iy My

The Vietnam plant i 7 5 [& 0.43% 0.43% 0.42%

The China plant & B i [& 1.25% 0.96% 2.21%

Foothold in Taiwan & /& 26 1.08% 1.17% 2.25%

(2) Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good 2 EIFAN-BAENERIFMNI/EHKRG

working conditions

o The Group attaches importance to gender equality .
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

° The Group has formulated relevant regulations which .
provide workers accommodated at the primary
production bases in Vietnam and China with benefits,
such as meals and free transportation.
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BRE HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

(3

Employees’ benefits — Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions (continued)

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2019, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2019 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3) Labour communication — Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights (continued)

° The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

° The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has
coordinated with international or local review institutions
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’
opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness

o Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

° The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.
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BRE HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2019, there were 7 cases of work injury in the Group’s
primary production bases, which resulted in a total of
1,632 lost working hours due to work injury. Among
which, a total of 616 hours of traffic accidents were
happened outside the factory area (accounting for 38%),
whereas a total of 1,016 hours of work-related accidents
occurred within the factory area (accounting for 62%).
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident within the factory area every year
through rigorous safety education, management system
and equipment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

(5)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including ISO 14001,
ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, I1SO 9001
and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards of
the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow

The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.
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BRE HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow (continued)

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.

In 2019, there were a total of 65,245 hours of education
and training courses organised by the main production
bases of the Group with an average training hours
of approximately 19 hours per person every year,
representing a rise by 1% in training hours per person
as compared to 2018. In 2019, total hours of middle
and high management personnel of the Group taking
occupational training courses were 13,150 hours
(middle management officers) and 9,338 hours (senior
management officers), respectively, increased by 3% in
training hours taken by middle management officers and
soared by 42% in training hours by senior management
officers as compared to 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6)

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.

The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.
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RIBE -HEREBRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued) BETITEREER (8H])

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ HH: BUME£Mg - HESTHEF (&)
Benefits (continued)

(7) Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a (7) BERFRZREIFR BREZTSESZZEH
better safety and health management system REEEHE

The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.

Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as ISO
14001, ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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RIBE -HEREBRE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued) HESEE (F)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining BER RtzeRE SEEMEBRARRE
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued) (#&)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management T I 15 77 A T ESE B I B ER
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of (1) TEHETHEDIZEG URAESE
improving management system of both parties 5

The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2019, the Group fully completed the
annual supplier assessment as planned.

The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.
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RE HERERBHRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(2)

Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

The Group also requires engineering contractors
to comply with and undertake to abide by all
requirements under the “Management Measures for
Safety and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies
and requirements under I1ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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BRE HERERES

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2019, the Group's primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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RIE -HEBREBRE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain various
food safety management systems, including GMP+Feed
Safety Assurance, I1SO 17025, HACCP, ISO 9001 and
FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant production
aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness and satisfy
customers’ requirements on quality and the requirements
of food safety standards. In addition, the Group decided
to implement the new agreements and rules on relevant
foods announced by the governments during 2019, and
internal education training was implemented to ensure
that the new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

° In 2019, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group's product in the random inspection
was approximately 0.03% in 2019, remaining flat as
compared to the fail rate of 0.03% last year, and it was
maintained to enhance the system for the traceability of
source management.

° The Group performed a product recall drill in July 2019
for every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.
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BRE HERERES

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
"operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

In order to grasp the customers’ satisfaction with the
products operated by the Group, and to investigate
whether the products meet the expectations of customers
and market, the customers’ satisfaction survey is
conducted every year for various items managed by the
Group, in which the surveys on MSG and seasonings will
be made twice a year, hence the Group can fully obtain
feedback to adjust the market strategies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBHRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations (continued)

In 2019, the Group received 4 customer feedback
(excluding customer enquiries and other cases) in
total. The office of general manager has appointed a
designated person to arrange the response to customers’
feedback and the response rate was 100%.

Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2019 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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BRE HERERES

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES
Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group's reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group's anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group’s assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group's system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2019.
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RE - HEREREE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company's active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.

The followings set forth a summary of the Group’s community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has been cooperating with the Government
of Dong Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital,
Taiwan and Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for eight
consecutive years to carry out international medical support
activities which benefitted over ten thousand people.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE INTEEEHZEENS (1F)
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be BE RELERRE SHALELXT (H)
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(2) Encouragement to employees to participate in social 2 FEREIZHHEAZTEH
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in SERREHEIAZZ2HEEE NS
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of B SEZUEERERAERS SN
the Group and their families have set an example by working TORHAETEERE “ERERED
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice ET HERESFHE THEZET D
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite EEE RBAFLSETE-

their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

(3) Continuous charity and public welfare activities (B3) BEETEENARTETH
To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help impoverished ARTEHBHEFAERS HBUREREN
families, the Group adheres to the concept of gaining healthy KB AEREERE @R EEE D
lives through flavourful and delicious food and organises B SEBFRERRARAE] - [H
various activities such as “Spreading Warmth at the End of the BE®mES] [BERAEE] [REEE
Year”, "Gratitude Fund”, “Building Warm-Hearted House” and ] EZEFY APHERIZEHREEE
“Poverty Fund” every year to provide the most appropriate #9175 Bl ©

support to the needy.

emanh:dsﬂndnunm

® GIAI B*= G Bﬁ

8 \'Em

ﬁ&qa B ™

Donations Construction of Schools and Spreading Warmth at the end of the Year Earning Recognition from
Encouragement to Students % s 2508 B the Football Competmon
BEEBREET B BB R
(4) Facilitation of environmental protection and energy 4) HBEBERREHE

conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of energy tﬁmmﬁmﬁ—m ERARGESEEZENE
and climate change issues among all people, the Group cooperated CEETER S E BT E A& ERAE
with the local government and international organisations i‘a‘k* ENEMNES BEREEI&E
every year to promote the concept of forest conservation by BA]-EE] - [RREBLE] [H£E
organising different activities such as “Green Sunday”, “Tree NIEHE]EE WEEHSERRES
Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing Competition” REFACIRHE - B MEMIE R R E TR &2k
and “Classification of Household Waste”, and sponsor a variety EERRRME S -

of environmental protection funds in an endeavour to facilitate
environmental protection, forest conservation, forest expansion and
improve the ecological environment.
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RE HERERBHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(5)

(6)

Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group
not only entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration
Memorandum” with numerous higher education institutions,
but also regularly carried out study encouragement in
accordance with the local government policies and gave
scholarships and donations for construction of schools in a bid
to provide better education to outstanding students in order to
encourage students to study hard.

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior
employees, establishing party organisations and organizing
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the
employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.

HEEEREELN (W)

BE REHERE LALELT (H)

(5)

(6)
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BRE HERERES

PROSPECTS

“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

The Group’s compliance of General Disclosures and KPls: SEET-REERBREMISEZEITER

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, HBHRE - HEFREAREES]) CHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EFE - REBERBRARER

Compliance as disclosed
“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

[ 87 FHEEEHRBEZETER

A. Environmental

BRIE
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
BER A — MR E (2016.1.14 %)

Information on:

BREBRMBEERBYN MKRLHHHES BEREZEREY

MEEER:

(a)  the policies; and As stated in the section

(@ BER: & headed “Environmental

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Protection (1) Emission
significant impact on the issuer management” in this

(b)y BTFHETABERFZEZMMEBEERAMNNER - report

MR EE IREBERE)H
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into MY ER | EHROL
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

F: (WEREREEASY BRI REMIBEREEZRBIRE
OVEZS /K

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

g QAZERBEE_ftHR Tk TR SEARLEED 28k
R RSB o

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

F QFEEEVEERROIAAESE -
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER EEH —REBERBEERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

[FETRERE] rEEERBEZBITHER

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
FRENIERE (2017.1.1%£ %)

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data. As stated in the section
RS AE IR IR A BERUYTE 28 AR A BE R B - headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MG E RRRE)
WA E R ] E R
KPlI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission
FRERIEIRA1.2 DR EREATENE (ABEEE) X (@A) E  management” in this
E(HNSEESEM BEKMTE) report

mEmEE RBERE)H
) E BE | F AUl
KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where As stated in the section
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per headed “Environmental

facility). Protection (1) Emission
BREIIEIEAM I ELABEREEMAS (LUETE) R (E management” in this
B)EE (MABESEMN BERIMETE) - report

MG E RERE)H
W E IR | EERUM
KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission
FRESIEEM A - FMEEBREEEYAES (LBEE) X (8 management” in this
REE (MASEES BIEFZHETE) - report

W EE [RBRE)SE
BER | EERUR
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RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EFEH —REBERBRARER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
[ FEFRAERE ] TBREERBE2BTER
KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and As stated in the section
results achieved. headed “Environmental
B4R B B IRANLS ¢« HE MURE HE R 2 A 5 R PR IS AR © Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

W EE [RBERE)BE
BER | EERUh

KPlI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous As stated in the section

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. headed “Environmental

BRETIESAMe  HAEREEREZEEMMN G E RIEKE Protection (1) Emission

EEMREERFAEKRR- management” in this
report

W EE [RFEREHE
W E R | EEiRL

A2 Use of General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
Resources: —RIFE (2016.1.14£ %K)
BERER:
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water As stated in the section
and other raw materials. headed “Environmental
BRFERER (BEERR  KREMERME)HBEER- Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MmEE REREQE
RIEAERE] EEAUM
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in

buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

i BARURREE RBF B BF ETRETF
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER EEH —REBERBEERER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

rEEERBEZBITHER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[FETRERE]

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BREAEMIERE (2017.1.1£X)

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. As stated in the section

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per headed “Environmental

unit of production volume, per facility). Protection (2) Resources

RABREBUEIZA2. 1 IRERE DM EE & EEER (WE R/ usage management” in

gofm) BFEE (NTETERGE) REE (MASEEEM( - §IE  this report

RiEEtHE) © MBEE RRREQA
TRIE AT EEfuL

KPI' A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit As stated in the section

of production volume, per facility). headed “Environmental

BARENIEIZA2.2 - B KEREE (NATGES S §IHRKME Protection (2) Resources

TE) - usage management” in
this report

MBEEREREQ)E

RERAER] E&au
KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and As stated in the section
results achieved. headed “Environmental
R ENIEIEA2.3 - g R E A a5 8 RIS AR - Protection (2) Resources

usage management” in

this report

MmEE REREQ)E

RERER | BEfuh
KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing As stated in the section
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results headed “Environmental

achieved.

RIS RIEIRA2.4  faal SREUE A/KIR LRI BRI RE - AR 3R

TR B R ATISR o

KPI A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

BAREMERA2S HEmAABERMHNEE (UEEAE) R

(MER)BEESMIGE-

86  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B & BIES (#20%) AR A 7

Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MBEE RBREQ)E
RIEAER] EEAUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

M EERRREQ)E
R AE R ZEERUt



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EFEH —REBERBRARER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
[ FE<FHEE rBREEREZBTER
A3 Environment General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
and Natural — R E (2016.1.14£ %K)
Resources:
BRERXAER:
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the As stated in the section
environment and natural resources. headed “Environmental
WRBEITAHRERRAERENERNZEMBE Protection (3) Environment

and natural resources
management” in this
report
MREE RIRREG)IR
RBRAABEREE]|EE
KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BREMER (2017.1.1£ %)

KPI A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on As stated in the section
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to headed “Environmental

manage them. Protection (3) Environment

RASE IR IEAZ X FHEHRERRAERMEAFZE  and natural resources

MERKREREMT ENTE - management” in this
report

W EE RBEREG)R
BERRAAREREE| Z8
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREEREZ

[FETHERE] BENE ‘TR

B. Social #&

I. Employment and
Labour Practices

- ERREIER
B1 Employment: General Disclosure
E&: (effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E (2016.1.156%)

Information on:
BEBREMREE BERER
THBE BE TSRE 57
b RERARE MR REF
O

=

the policies; and
BE: R

D

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHBTABEATEM
EREERADINER -

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRE HEREAREESD cHEXR

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER BEE —REBRERERIER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report

FHEEREZ

B2 Health and
Safety:
REEZE:

[FETHEE]

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—RHE (2016.1.156%)

Information on:
BHRER 2 TERERRERE
BMEBENREN:

=

the policies; and
BE R

=

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHBTABEATYEM
EREERADINER -

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BRERER

KPI B1.1
A MIEIER

KPI B1.2
MR MIEIZR1.2

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

RER ERER  FRARN RN
EEHMESAH-

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

BRI FhRAR KR E S
EERALE-

BiTER

As stated in the section
headed “ Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MREEETIRHA
BHOERRA] 65
e

As stated in the section
headed " Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MBREEIEIRRA
BRHO)EERRE] 26
At

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBEEE[ETIRERE
BHIGREZ2ERRE
F TR EEAUR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report

Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREEREZ
[RETRFRE] BENE BiTER
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BREXER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related  As stated in the section
R EUEIER21 fatalities. headed "Employee
ATHEBEMILTHAS KL Practice and Benefit (4)
Ko Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MBEEETRMAE
BHOREZ 2 RERE
) IIERRE] ZHAUL

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. As stated in the section
HRENEIER2.2 AIGEAIERY: headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
NREEEIRRE
BRORBZ2ERE
TR | E St
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational  As stated in the section
BB NUEE82.3 health and safety measures headed "Employee
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adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
HAMRANBRREREZ2#
I AR RIT RE R %

Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBEEEETERE
BHOBRER2HER
B ITERE] EHsM



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER BEE —REBRERERIER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BRE HEREAREESD cHEXR

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report

FHEEREZ

B3 Development
and Training:
BRRE:

[FETHEE]

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—REE (2016.1.1£%)

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
ERRARERTIEBEN
RO T B B BRI
o

Note:  Training refers to vocational
training. It may include
internal and external courses
paid by the employer.

i EIEREEI AaEhE
FREHAINDRE

KPI'B3.1

BIRIENIEIEB3.1

KPI B3.2

BRENIERB3.2

BENE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-BRANER

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle

management).

BURREERA (MBRE
E PHRERES) A 0RIIE

BANK-

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

BURRERRAES S2E

BEREHNTHRH-

BiTER

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MREE(BEIZRE
BHEG)EREEI]E
B AT

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MREEEIRRE
BHO)EREEI] &
iR

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MBEEIEIRHA
BHG)EREEEI] E
S8
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREEREZ
[FETHEE] BEEHE EiTtEx
B4 Labour General Disclosure
Standards: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HBIRA: —REE (2016.1.1£K)

Information on:

BRI ETHRHSTA:

D

the policies; and As stated in the section
@ HX:& headed “Employee
Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report

laws and regulations that MBEE[EIEEE
have a significant impact BI(6)% T o8| 255
on the issuer it
(b) BFHBOTABEATYEM
EREERADINER -
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BERE-HREEANESR
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
R EUEIERA review employment practices to  headed "Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
iR B DI LA 2 Labour standards” in
ETIRRHSBT this report

MBEEBTIRRE
BAlE) S T AR Z65

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section

BiRENERBL.2 eliminate such practices when headed "Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HAEHRERBNTEREMB  Labour standards” in
BERFRMM SR this report

MBEEBIRHE
EA(6)% TR Z 55
gigud
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RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER BEE —REBRERERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[FEIR#E] ERRE BTER
II. Operating
Practices
ZBEEBH
B5 Supply Chain General Disclosure
Management: (effective from 2016.1.1)

HEEEE: —RBE (2016.1.14£ %K)

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE R EARK
% o

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this
report

MBEE [fEEEE

Bl
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
ERRE-HERNER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by As stated in the section
BB UE 1285, geographical region. headed "Supply Chain

BiREDMEEREE - Management (1), (2)
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating ~ @nd (3)" in this report
RIEMIEIEB5.2 to engaging suppliers, number ﬁﬂiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ

of suppliers where the practices () @&E) ] E @t

are being implemented, how

they are implemented and

monitored.

HAEHERtERNEN @

EHOTRBEHNNHtEREE

NRBEBERNRTRERR

e
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREEREZ
[ R B 5 #E BEEHE EiTtEx
Il. Operating
Practices
—BEEH
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmEfE: —REE (2016.1.1£%)

Information on:
B RFTIR A E A PR 7S A0 2 B B
22 BE BERLEEEUER

BRAEN -
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@) HFE: R headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
(b) compliance with relevant NHREEEmAA
laws and requlations that (1) ] EEft

have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BTFHETABERYEN
HEEERAOMER -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

BRE HEREAREESD cHEXR
(%)

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER BEE —REBRERERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
AREEREZ
BTN

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures
EENE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-HEANER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold ~ As stated in the section
R EIERE. or shipped subject to recalls for headed “Product
safety and health reasons. Responsibility (1)" in
EEFEERERBHTRRE  this report
HEFEMMABKNESL NREEERERMR
(ORE=3:1:¢u
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service  As stated in the section
BRIE N IEIEB6.2 related complaints received and headed “Product
how they are dealt with. Responsibility (2)" in
BEEBNERIRBOZFEE  this report
AR S % NEEEEmEML
) E&fut
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating ~ As stated in the section
TRIENIEIEB6.3 to observing and protecting headed “Product
intellectual property rights. Responsibility (1)" in
il EEERRERNEEESBR  this report
& - mEEEEmEML
()| Bt
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance  As stated in the section
R IEMIE1EB6.4 process and recall procedures. headed “Product
HiZERTBERERLKE Responsibility (1)" in
e this report
mEsEEmEML
ORE-:i7:¢u
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data  As stated in the section
R EIER6.S protection and privacy policies, headed “Product
how they are implemented and ~ Responsibility (1)" in
monitored. this report
HLEBEARRERABR MBREE(EREAR
FARBBRTRERDE (1) EFHRUE
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(BRE - g REAREES]) ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREEREZ
[RETRFRE] ERRE BiTEl
Il. Operating
Practices
—EEEM
B7 Arlti-corruption: General Disclosure
RER: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RHE (2016.1.156%)

Information on:

BRMLER 9R HERER

TOF
(a) the policies; and As stated in the
@ BE R section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report
laws and requlations that nHEEREFN R

2z foie A S
have a significant impact B AU

on the issuer
(b) BFHETABEAFEN
AEERRABMER -

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
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RIR #HERERBREME

BRE HEREAREESD cHEXR
(%)

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER BEE —REBRERERIER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
AREEREZ
BTN

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures
EENE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-HEANER

KPI B7.1
BRENERBT.

KPI B7.2
B ENIEEBT.2

Number of concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERBAHETAIEEER
HIEBENETHARRFNE
BRFDER-

Description and preventive
measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
M HEERBRER UK
HERTREER -

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(1)" this report

WHREEREFHA
(1) ] EEft

As stated in the
section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(2)" this report

nHEEEREFHA
(2) | EEf
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RE HERERWMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR BFEH —REEREREARER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[FETHERE]

Recommended Disclosures

BENE

BRE HEREAREESD) cHEX

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
AREEREZ
BTER

1ll. Community
= HE

B8 Community
Investment:

HERE:

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
— R E (2016.1.14£%)

Polices on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests.
FRNHE2ERTR2EME
HERENRREEBEDHEE
BAHRMEAHR

KPI B8.1 Focus are as of contribution

IR MIEIEBS.1 (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
ETEREE (0HE - BES
H-SIFR BE Xt -8
B)o

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g.

MR EUEIERS.2 money or time) to the focus
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Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BENE-HEANER

area.

EEIREMPAER (Da#

HEERH) ©

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
NHREEMHELE R
ZENm | EEMUL

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
MREEMRLEH
BER@(1)-6) | 26
1

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
NREEMHELEHR
BEDNE | B



Report of Directors

EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 10 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface

For fair review of the Group’s business, the description about major
risks and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this Report.

Subsequent events after year end date

Except for the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020 as mentioned
in note 36 to the accounts, no other major event that influences
business operation of the Group has occurred since 31 December
2019 (the balance sheet date of the financial year under review) until
the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.

ARAEF([EFDENERBE_T—NF
T_AZ+ - BLEFENEFEREREEX
B8 -

TEEFR

RABAREERAT  EMEARTEREMN
BEBIMEERERESD RAOAMIE RAZRK
MITEER EMBEAREBERNFBHIRN
BR B FIFE10 ©

ZEEBROBEFELESAEE -

EBOE

#E

BFRAKEXBNTEES BHEEZRRMT
RARRZIRAREBRE F2HAHREL
[TEHREEIREBEN® RO MET-

FRBEEHE

BT RERB M0 IR RN — T T F YR
BWFERANE B -AF+-_A=+—HB(H
BYBREFEEER)BREARER  U\EMT
EREHEENEREMFEL-

TERBERBREENTN
BRERBRAREXHERANTIEMBREER
HiE BR2HANFRESAE[PBEE] -

RARBEBRERR

RERE - BESAKERIRBNINERZRR
SECBTEEEMERNBERREREIAE
REREK SREREMATRERDR EEEE
UETHABIRANAM BRIESEERE
B PIIERRSR AR R RAER
FEE MBS AL R AR KRB KB B
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Report of Directors

EEERE

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4.  Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6.  Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

100 vedan International (Holdings) Limited B BIES (388 ) AR A 7)
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Report of Directors

EEERE

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group’s regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group's
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 124.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.214
US cents per share, totalling US$3,259,000 (2018: US$4,042,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be paid in cash on 9 June 2020 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
27 May 2020.

HES FFPFRHUBANEIEHRR
AEEBGEELERM I ATATRRER
BE - HEER 2 ARFEREHIKINZ I KA
B RAMBEE ZERBME - AEBEHEITR
BERBEl REEENTEREIEIFS I
REBE BFL HRESRE REERHEZ2E
BENRMNEFLEY AEERAERLER

EEA‘MLFE%AXEEEK%@%%H
BH-REBEFA SIEHRARETRERBILE
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AEEREEREYRENESHE A
ERFIERFIEREFPNEBH R - AEBRBER
FEErEBENRIHERE TEBHRHIE
BEREERS BREBERBERERERT -
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Report of Directors

EEERE

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019 amounting to US$136,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 17 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2019.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentage of revenue
from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the
Group's five largest customers combined was less than 30%.
Information in respect of the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier
12%

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers combined 33%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in these major suppliers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 3,713 employees,
3,519 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 181 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 13 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group's
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group's competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Cheng, Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen, Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung and
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 32 to 37.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@) As at 31 December 2019, the interests of Directors of the

Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

mean

ing of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

(the "SFQ"), were as follows:—

EERKRMG HRERMRRESZEGN

wRE
(a)

E—-NF+_A=1T—HB KAQF=E

ERARARETAREEE (ERRE

7 B RPIEXVER) 2 By - HE BB ()
NE#FEPHA 2 ERIT: —

Interests in shares

Rz

Number of
ordinary shares
(Long Position)

Percentage of
issued shares
of the Company

Name Capacity ZEREAE HARATE BT

#®E g1 (##&) BHEBEDLHE

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%

SRS E controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)

REEHZ 7w (P 7% 123)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIERE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)
REEH Z 7w (Pf7F2223)

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%

ERELE EmEA A

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

HWIEREE EmEA A

Notes: M 5T

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control 1. HBERELAEREATESNIEHTE
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power King International Limited ([King
of King International Limited (“King International”). Mr. International | )i =5 2 — K &
YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to have interest TRE o 15 BE M 5T A B M A AR B R King
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International# & 2 169,730,196 & AX &
International. AR B -

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise 2. BIEREBRETENRZHITHEKing
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International. Internationali i =5 2 —HIFKRE 15
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest AR MR AR King International i
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King H2169,730,196 8 AN A 7 s 10 Fh A 4
International. Fii)

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng 3. BEBELTERBEXSERNMBEREZ

had in the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such
rights.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2019 are as follows:

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen was appointed as the Chairman of Shanghai
Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai) from
16 August 2019.

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung no longer serves as the Chairman of
Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen
Maotai) from 16 August 2019.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray no longer serves as the Independent Non-
executive Director of Vectorite Biomedical Inc. (an emerging-stock
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 20 June
2019.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2018 annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2018.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.
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Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month's notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong has a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 22 October 2018.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BF T 9 R
MBERANREESHARARANEER
MEESHE ZRFEALUSENBBRITER
BEREMEL BENERXTERMBRER
XA HR - BR - WE BX BERFE
A EERRLZEMBRS  EABMERE LT
HEEMEEFTRFRXTHERRNER

\A§$J4WW$A%% AR FNE I

SEFMENAL ARRAARBTLEAL K
ERRERADAEAEBOEED KA
235 -

HERERXS
ERACEROERAR ([EEKRA]) 2X5H

HE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE £AQF
HEFDRRERBEALTEERAETTIR
S MZEXPBERAET ETHRBE14AZ R
#&&“iiﬁgzﬁﬁtﬁﬁkx% RARINEE
THRNEUVAZTNERIEHBBEE:

Note Us$'000
B 5 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A. BRI EEE R (i) 7,410
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEKSLNM (ii) 2,156
Taiwan Vedan Rtk ®
Notes B E -

(i) The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
21 December 2017, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2020. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.
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(i)

(iii)

On 12 April 2018, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into the
supplemental agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan
Sales Agreement, so as to revise the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions under the Taiwan Sales Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2020 from US$7,000,000
to US$30,000,000.

US$7,410,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$30,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 12 April 2018.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 21 December 2017, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2020. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's future business
developments.

US$2,156,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 21 December 2017.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

(i)

(iii)

RZZE—NENA+=-H RNATEEEKS
BRAEHEEHRBERBUER 2 BRI LM
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 108 to 109 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 34
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 222 of the annual
report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2019, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BEMRE
ARBEBERBUAREHRB AP L EESL
BERRE BERAQBRRLIARBRREE
D o

AEMBEBME
AEBERBARTEAMBRFENEEREENE
BERRERNAFRFE2228 -

FERRERRBRMZEINKR

BARAMM R_TE-NFt_A=1+—8"
BREXFREBEARARESZHZEHITHRABNE
#@wIN A TATRARBRM P HEREE SR
HERPIEXVEIFE2RFE3N B2 FXARAR
BIRBENE D  RIARRRIREZE S LS G
BIZE336IGMIFE 2 B M A :

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZERHE mHEAFE
=x! 54 (##&) BITROBES L
Billion Power Limited (”Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
Tma A (Note 1)
(PREET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
(“Taiwan Vedan"”) corporation (Note 1)
RABEROERAR ([AEKS]) REZEH 2 bE#ER (PREET)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
ERMAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
EmEE A
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
ERMAA
RECERNDER DA Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
EmEE A
Notes: BT -
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion Power & & EK K2 EMB LR A

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

IR S5 17 5 % A 7% 5 B Billion PowerfTi$ A 2
512,082,512/% B 10 2 #E 2
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2019, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non- AREAEEFZ  ARRBYIFRITEERE
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would I ZE S TFEHBHN AEE 2 £EHE RS ELE
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the LAﬁEﬁ (ERBE) RSB ERMRINELTE
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in REBERN AT EE  WGEERL -

respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the

basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of

Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR &% B Em

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who AR BEKHE I KE ST SHEMEZ
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ZZHEMEmER MRTEEEEET-
By Order of the Board AEESH

YANG, Kun-Hsiang IR ke

Director and Chief Executive Officer BEFHFITHAE

24 March 2020 —ECTF=A-+mMmH
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 122 to 221, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

i Bk 7k 18
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

HEIFIHER

BHRR ZEREMBRERCREFTES
fAg ([BASFEAS]) BMEE MK R
SR ([FEMBREEL ) EEMP B R
B EEER_ZE-AFT_A=+—HHRK
EHMBRRAREREZALFENGAMBR
BARGAEERE WO EREEQTED 2
BHRERAEE-

ERE®R
HRPMERBEESAMASEMOEBE;LE
Al ([BAFEER])ETE -RMAEZFE
AN B AR AR RS A BN L AR
EMBmRARENETEH AL -

-+

4

b=[I1

BAIE(E - RPIMERHERRE LR B ME
W ARARPIHE R IR ER -

Bk

Bt

REFBGTLGH (BESEBETAD
(T=p81)) - BB BEEE - XOARETH
BITEMBRERE T

HEEER
MRBFRIRERMNEZHE  BREAX
HRGAMBREANBTRAEENFR GL
EFERERMEBAERGAVBRRIERE
REETRE - R TS HELFTREHEEN
BR-
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of

goodwill.

Key Audit Matter
BRE SR

BFERET TR W AR ET S REHERE
B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET U AEERRETER

Impairment of goodwill

AmERE

Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHRAMIEHREWEE

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
goodwill for PRC MSG related business is US$7.3 million,
before provision of impairment of goodwill. As described
in the Note 2.8 to the consolidated financial statements,
goodwill impairment assessments are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8" MNREEREREEN +
Bl EEBEEBNEEREEARATIAEEL - MK E
B R M 2. 8FT i - B H FHEITRENE - TER
BEHHRABEANEBE AL RRER  EHE
T -

In carrying out the impairment assessment of goodwill,
management determined the recoverable amount based
on the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value
less cost of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU"). In the absence of a market
comparable, management adopted the income approach
and used discounted cash flow (“DCF") forecast to
determine the recoverable amount of the CGU under
both VIU and FVLCD methods and considered the
recoverable amount under the VIU method to be higher.
RETEEBRETEN CEEREEREE ([FRE
B UARBRRIRSEM (MRS BEM]) 2 A FERT
ERA([RFEREERR) ZHAE (ABsERE)
EERAIRE SR AR TISTEA LRGN EREER
M ERFERAAERSRE ([MMRBRE]) A
NEEERAEBERATFTERLDEXNAEE THRNREE
AW ECE TR REREEEZAETAIREEER

o

=)
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We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of
assumptions and estimates applied in financial budget
prepared by management covering a five-year period such
as sales growth rate, gross margin and discount rate by
comparing with relevant market rates, current year and
historical trends of the business and the industry and
management’s development plans.
BMEEBRLEBHEEATE EBRITELAFERELBE
NEERBE ERAE FAEEANEREREZ LFHB
BREPHRZ MGG (NHEHEERE  EAERRIFREE)
BEE M R — Bt .

We involved our internal valuation specialist to assess
the valuation methodology, discount rate adopted and
the numerical accuracy of the calculations prepared by
management.
BRHABEEZRE2EAEERENGETE KAH
PR FETAH ERE R R -

We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis which
considers the effect of reasonably possible changes of major
assumptions including sales growth rate, gross margin and
discount rate to the recoverable amount of goodwill.
BMEFEEREENGREST EFZEEFTEMK AL
BHAERIHTE BRHEEERE EFNELHEITW
Ol e ENFTRE-
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Key Audit Matter
B ETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHEFNAEERRETSE

The DCF calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets prepared by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows of the related
CGU beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates.

AR eREFEINERERECAFHNBEES
EERBHRBATR SRS TN - 8 1 4 5 a0 18 B FRER
ReBUmBeneERAEtERI®ES -

The recoverable amount of the CGU determined based
on DCF was lower than the carrying amount, and
therefore, a provision for impairment of goodwill of
US$3.6 million was recognised against goodwill of PRC
MSG related business for the year ended 31 December
2019.
REBERRBECRSEETHRNIR S EL 2 AT DO S R
REREE A B2 NF+-_A=+—HLF
E-EnPEREEEERNEERERSERERE3.6
AEETe

We focus on this area because these calculations and
valuations require the use of significant judgements
and estimates. These estimations are also subject to
uncertainty.

HRZENETERMGESR 2L ERNHE LA
BRI EE - ZE M METHPERTE -

Other Information

Based on the procedures described, we considered the
methodology used and key assumptions applied in the
impairment assessment of goodwill were supportable.
RBEFTMEF  BMR BN EBERETEFRAERAN T ER
FIERMNEE2RER/BRIE-

Hit&H

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other EBERAIEREHHMERAES HEMERBIEF
information. The other information comprises all of the information  FRAMFTA AR BTEIELRA P IEHRE KB
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial — BJ#X E AR % -

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

RBMREA GRS BERRAENER
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 SRE FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights - Hb {5 A A 6 - 1,892
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREZE 7 149,072 151,788
Right-of-use assets HRAEEE 8 5,073 -
Intangible assets EEE 9 4,746 8,566
Long-term prepayments and REFFE T 5RIB &
other receivables H {th g W SR8 14 2,897 725
Investments in an associate REERB2IRE 11 6,020 6,119
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 167,808 169,090
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 13 95,828 91,102
Trade receivables FEUE SR 3K 14 29,511 33,151
Prepayments and other receivables B RIE R
H h g WoskoE 14 15,975 13,585
Amount due from a related party JEUEREE A LRIE 34(d) 954 1,191
Current income tax recoverable 2R EBIFTER - 1,241
Structured bank deposits EEMRITHER 15 2,293 8,888
Short-term bank deposits HEHRITERR
and pledged bank deposits AR IR 1T 17 5K 15 15,980 15,342
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEYD 15 41,127 34,215
Total current assets REBEEHAE 201,668 198,715
Total assets EEH#E 369,476 367,805
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners ARAREBABGLESR
of the Company
Share capital & 7= 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves ] 17 272,286 271,128
287,514 286,356
Non-controlling interest IR 213 326
Total equity A 287,727 286,682
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As at 31 December

W= A=1+-H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings HRITEE 19 15,376 15,697
Lease liabilities HEBE 8 3,016 -
Deferred income tax liabilities REMBHEE 20 2,705 3,238
Retirement benefit obligations BREMNE T 29 1,414 1,478
Long-term environmental provision REPR G RAE 18 444 387
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE 22,955 20,800
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JERTE ZERFR 18 12,784 20,875
Accruals and other payables EAER R
H At & A 5RIE 18 18,816 16,874
Amounts due to related parties JERNBRAEALFIE  34(d) 1,351 1,391
Bank borrowings HRITEE 19 24,748 20,469
Lease liabilities HEBE 8 111 -
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS T AL tE 984 714
Total current liabilities REaEAH 58,794 60,323
Total liabilities EERE 81,749 81,123
Total equity and liabilities ERREERAE 369,476 367,805

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 221 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and were

signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung
B
Director

BF

Yang, Kun-Hsiang
3 EE
Director

BF

biitraBERBREERMBRME —GiBIE -

BRBINE221EZ2HAWBRRER T =
EFE-_A-+THRAEEESEHRILHTIAL
KEREZ-
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meEWlEE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-BHLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
k=3 FEx FET
Revenue & 5,21 357,857 356,772
Cost of sales & BCAR 23 (291,292) (289,274)
Gross profit EX 66,565 67,498
Other gains — net H Uz — 558 22 1,093 459
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 23 (25,081) (23,117)
Administrative expenses TER X 23 (22,618) (22,974)
Operating profit BERF 19,959 21,866
Finance income B WA 871 929
Finance costs B8 s (918) (832)
Finance (costs)/income — net B () WA
—HFE 24 (47) 97
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of FEGEE QAR TE
an associate (F5E) &7 11 (99) 44
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 B4 A0 % R 19,813 22,007
Income tax expense FriSfiB X 25 (4,228) (4,613)
Profit for the year KEERF 15,585 17,394
Profit attributable to: DT &FEMLRF :
Owners of the Company KRABHEB A 15,563 14,285
Non-controlling interest IR 22 3,109
15,585 17,394
Earnings per share for profit ARREEAEGER
attributable to the owners of BRZERBF
the Company during the year (ABREMWHR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BRERER 27 1.02 0.94
Diluted earnings per share SREEER 27 1.02 0.94

The above consolidated income statement should be read in  FiifgAWEREERMBAMN T —HEIE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ReEZERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLEFE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit for the year KEEEF 15,585 17,394
Other comprehensive loss: Hith2HEE:
Item that may be reclassified to A B HE B 2 H A
profit or loss
Release of exchange reserve upon HE—RNBAGRERZ
disposal of a subsidiary 0E 5 # (3,707) -
Currency translation differences MEH =% (576) (2,013)
Other comprehensive loss TEERFAHMZEESE
for the year, net of tax (4,283) (2,013)
Total comprehensive income AFEEZTEHRALRE
for the year 11,302 15,381
Total comprehensive income ATE&EFEEEAEERZE
for the year attributable to: W A%
— Owners of the Company VNN =N 11,280 12,228
— Non-controlling interest — JEIE AR R o 22 3,153
Total comprehensive income AFEETEHRALRE
for the year 11,302 15,381

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bltaR & 2 Y aR AR RS R AR R M o — GBI -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

Attributable to owners of the Company

KA EEE AL
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity

K& ROEE ENRE  AKEE  EERE  REEA A FEREE  BEAE
US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TET e TEL TETL TER TET TEL TETL TER

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\%

—R-Az&% 15,228 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year FEEET - - - - - 14,285 14,285 3,109 17,3%
Other comprehensive income/ Et2ERA/ (B8)

(loss)

Currency translation differences EXEE - - (2,057) - - - (2,057) 44 (2,013)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWA/ (B8) 48 - - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228 3,153 15,381

Total transactions with owners HERAZARSE

Dividends (Note 26) &8 (H3E26) - - - - - (11,282) (11,282) - (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reverse ENRELTHE - - - - 45 (45) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%
+ZA=t-Bz&H% 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,99 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682

Balance at 1 January 2019 WZE-NE-A-Hz&H 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year AERER - - - - - 15,563 15,563 2 15,585
Other comprehensive loss Ht2EER
Release of exchange reserve upon HE-FHlEAFR

disposal of a subsidiary BRERGE - - (3,707) - - - (3,707) - (3,707)
Currency translation differences ERER - - (576) - - - (576) - (576)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (§#8) /WALE - - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280 2 11,302

Total transactions with owners BREFAZAREE
Non-controlling interest for disposal ~ HE—FHBAF 2

of a subsidiary (Note 35) SRR HES (M7E35) - - - - - - - (105) (105)
Dividends (Note 26) R & (Bit2e) - - - - - (10,122) (10,122 - (10,122)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ [Eff—FHBAF 2

interest of a subsidiary FERES RS - - - - - - - (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-hE
TZA=T-HZEH 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 287,514 213 287,727

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be — EilisRARERSEESREERMEWT —HHEE-
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERIRER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZZE-N\F
Note Us$°000 Us$'000
b 5 FEx FE
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBRELECEHESRE
Cash generated from operations ¥GEECE® 31(a) 28,135 29,456
Interest paid EATHE (1,107) (1,106)
Income taxes paid BTFTE %R (3,372) (3,116)
Net cash generated from operating KEXEBELE R EFE
activities 23,656 25,234
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZRERE
Purchases of property, BEME WEREE
plant and equipment (16,561) (23,636)
Proceeds from disposal of LEWE BER
property, plant and equipment BB TS RIE 31(a) 3 86
Proceeds from disposal of LEFELEZ
assets held-for-sale BEZSRIEA - 411
Purchases of intangible assets BERVEE 9 (5) -
(Increase)/decrease in short-term bank RHRITESR R
deposits and pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER
(Em) /R (638) 721
Decrease/(increase) in structured bank EEMRITHER
deposits A (1) 6,595 (4,985)
Interest received BEUAE 534 888
Investment in an associate EAH%M“ AZIEE 11 - (2,520)
Net cash used in investing activities REEEMACRE TR (10,072) (29,035)
Cash flows from financing activities BRETBHELECZRSRE
Dividends paid ERE 26 (10,122) (11,282)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMENIEA 59,715 48,045
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (55,807) (47,269)
Principal elements of lease payment MENRZEEZKD (324) -
Net cash used in financing activities BEESFAZ
B FE (6,538) (10,506)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERRESEEY
cash equivalents i CEd)FEE 7,046 (14,307)
Cash and cash equivalents )\S’Q\E?ﬂzfﬁ/ﬁ&
at beginning of year 2 EEY 15 34,215 49,679
Exchange losses on cash and fﬁé&fﬁAMf’i%Z
cash equivalents FE X &8 (134) (1,157)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZREER
at end of year REEEY 15 41,127 34,215
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Gt ABREREXREEREBN T —HRIE-

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B EmRHE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate ("MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Second
Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the group consisting of Vedan International (Holdings)
Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the structured bank deposits
measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERFIEFTHRREBE (1)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RMEE (&)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements WETEEBUBRELNES
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain M RAFTEERETEEN G
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management et MEBRETERAAEE g5t
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying BEBEFRITFEEELHE P RS
the Group’'s accounting policies. The areas involving BRI BB I 2 0 - SRR Rl
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas FATE A M BREMNEBERNZH
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the N STk

consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  New standards, amendments to standards and (a) FEEFRWZFER - ERZ
interpretation adopted by the Group 1E5T K R 2 7
The Group has applied the following new REER-_Z—-NF—HA—H
standards, interpretation and amendments to 62 FBUFE S & IR AT
standards which are mandatory for the Company AR BIZEE HIER AN 2 Fr AR -
for the first time for the financial year beginning on HRERER 2R

1 January 2019:

Annual Annual Improvements —E—+tFy7 CE-I0FZ%
Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle FEREEE C—T—tER
Project 2017 B EELHE

HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, BRGHER  EEBT ERK
(Amendment) Curtailment or Settlement 195 7

SEHES!

HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in ERGER REELAK

(Amendment) Associates and Joint 5285 AELEN
Ventures (BFIR) REER
HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with ERMEERE ABERENRRE
(Amendment) Negative Compensation R B9 BT
CEHEN)
HKFRS 16 Leases ERUBRE HE
ERIE165
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B4 (AR FEHEEITE
Treatments BEREZE Tl
2)%23%

Impact on the adoption of HKFRS 16 are set out in RN E B R EENE 165

Note 2.2. The adoption of other new and amended ZHEHAMTE2.2 c RN EM

standards and interpretation did not have any AT RASEFT R R R 4%

material impact on the current period or any prior 7N B R Sl A fa] S AT ER R S K

periods. FRERTFE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B EmRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to (b) DA % O AR IR R F
standards have been issued, but are not effective — JLAE— H — H Bk 2 B EUAE
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 JE A% > BN MR A BR Al 22
and have not been early adopted. HE ) Je HE R 2 ABFT A

Effective for annual
periods beginning on

or after
RT5 A%
ZERKZ
FEHBEXR
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
(Amendments)
BEEGHERNEIRR BRHEE el =
BB G ERE85R
SCEHIEN)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of Business 1 January 2020
BB GRS EREIR EBHEE —EZEF—A—H
(BT )
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract 1 January 2021
BEMBMEERE1THR REE L —E—F—A—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
BEVBREENEI0R R KREFHEABRE AT K FEE
BB ERE285% AEPEZAMNEEHESTE
(BT )
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for 1 January 2020
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting
ZE-)N\FHBHRERSER BV BREUSESRE —E-FEF—A—H
The directors of the Company have assessed the AARERD T HERM EE
financial impact on the Group of the adoption BRI RER ZAEFT ARG AR EE
of the above new standards and amendments BB MR AR T
to standards. There are no new and amended H R AR RS RS AE R
standards that are not yet effective and that would AR Al RARRAZ 53K E R
be expected to have a material impact on the Group B2 R RAERT 2R - K&
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable B 70 Ll 2 Bl R 2RI 2 &
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the AT AN HE R T LAER AR o

above new standards and amendments to standards
when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 “Leases” on the Group's financial statements and
discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 January 2019.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group have adopted
HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has
not restated comparative for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the simplified transition approach in
the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing standards are therefore
recognised in the opening consolidated balance sheet on
1 January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 "Leases”. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
as at 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee's
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 was 2.83%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the entity
recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and
lease liability immediately before transition as the carrying
amount of the right of use asset and the lease liability at
the date of initial application. The measurement principles
of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that date. The
remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as
adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately
after the date of initial application.

2

RREERFESHBREE (W)

2.2

B BEEH

A EMBRATEY B HREER
165 [HE | HAEEMBIRERZ
FE ITHBEEE-T-NEF—A—
REEMRZHETHE-

AN XM E2 MM REEE
E-NF-A-HREWNRNEE
R EERIE 165 BRELER
)BT AR AR L RE T
- \FREPENERET - H
It BEHERREE ZEFR DB R
HER_Z—-NAF—A— AN
FEEERARKRTHER-

REMEEM RS ERF 165
B AKBEREARERESAE
AE7RHEI RS ER K
EHEIMEERREERE -%F
BEREENRBENRETE
WEAEBAARZZE-—NAF—A—
BMEERRNETETRE -ER
R_F-NAF-A-—RAZEERE
ZINETEERBAESERNNER
2.83% °

HEMDBARMEBEZHENS -
ERNEZBENMSEEEE LA
EREZEMERRRERREE
FEERERERERARNZER
B -BAPBREEF IR ZAE
REENZAMRER -HEREZ
BN EREREERER B KR
REMBEHAEEE AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
() Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

° the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

° reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous;

o the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;
and

o the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered
into before the transition date, the Group relied on
its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HKFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEBERTESHHFERE (&)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 22 BEHERESE (E)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

(i) HEREZF;E

Us$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments RZZE-—NF+_A=+—HEEZ
disclosed as at 31 December CETRE R E
2018 3,219
Less: short-term leases recognised BRERERRERI ZEHEE
on a straight-line basis as
expenses (423)
Operating lease liabilities RZZE—N\F+_A=+—RHERF 2
before discounting as at KEHEEE
31 December 2018 2,796
Discounted using the lessee’s REREARBEAABEAZEEHERK
incremental borrowing rate of FRBBRN-_ZT—NE—A—Q
at the date of initial application BRZHEEAE
and lease liabilities recognised
as at 1 January 2019 2,481
Of which are: Hehm:
Current lease liabilities nBHEaE 166
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEEEE 2,315
2,481
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B EmRHE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RREERFESHBREE ()

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

22 BFBEE2H (&)

(ifi)  Measurement of right-of-use assets (i) (EAEEEZFE
The associated right-of-use assets were measured HEERAREERSRNEE
at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted BEZEENE WEEER
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease —E-NEF-A—RZEES
payments relating to that lease recognised in the BERERZBE 2 EAFERA R
balance sheet as at 1 January 2019. There were no R HENFSEAR -
onerous lease contracts that would have required 15BN B R ER B H AR A
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date EEEZEEMRY-
of initial application.

(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on (iv) RZF-—NF-—A—HZEE
1 January 2019 BEXERZHE
The change in accounting policy affected the BIBREEHTEUATR_Z

following items in the balance sheet on 1 January
2019.

° Land use right — decreased by US$1,892,000

—NE-A-BZBEEBRER
A -

e tTHERE-RED

1,892,000% 7
. Right-of-use assets — increased by . A EAEE-—$#m
Us$4,373,000 4,373,0003 7T
. Lease liabilities (current portion) — increased . HEBB (RN
by US$166,000 5) —1# 166,000
7T
. Lease liabilities (non-current portion) - . HEaE(FERSE
increased by US$2,315,000 ) —1#02,315,0003%
7T
There is no impact on retained earnings on 1 RZE—NF—A—B2ZKRE
January 2019. BRI EZ A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B EmRHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(o]

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.4), or financial
asset (Note 2.11). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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e M B EmRHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.
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e M B EmRHE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains—net’.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFEFTHRREE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6 SHEEBRE
(a)  Functional and presentation currency (a) RERZHEH
ltems included in the financial statements of each AEEZERBZUBHREM
of the Group’s entities are measured using the BIEZER DRZEBLKE
currency of the primary economic environment FrEs TERLBERFECEE
in which the entity operates (“the functional ([T EB )2 e
currency”). The consolidated financial statements WMEARRR 2L EHE AR
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s SEZEMEKEITES -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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e M B EmRHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains—net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERFIEFTHRREBE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.8 Intangible assets 28 EEEE
(a)  Goodwill (a) e
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries NSNS S
represents the excess of the consideration WHEMEZERRE  REEER
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 2 AEA] FE 12 N e 2 DA J2 SR AT S
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair W 2 R RN R
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree Hz AT ERBEMKEND #
over the fair value of the identified net assets REEFEAFEZHE-
acquired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETRENR REBKEH
acquired in a business combination is allocated RRE B DEETEHRR
to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"), BRA PR R 2 & BREUR
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the B (MBS EMN]) K
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of —HEEBE S BN FEHE
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents BB —HEMRERE
the lowest level within the entity at which the RANERERGE L REE
goodwill is monitored for internal management TH o BN E D A B E AT
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating B o
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken PMETFETRERS T
annually or more frequently if events or changes RESFHLBRERNEBET
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. AR AR ER  ELE AR
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the Ao MEREEEAWES
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value # (BNfE B A QT ER
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any ERAZBR®E)FLER T
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense AR ENRERRFx  BE
and is not subsequently reversed. S EN
(b)  Trademarks and license (b) EIEREE
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, BEREAERFH 2B
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost 8 2 PR R B BRI B AR R 5T
less accumulated amortisation and impairment BB EBEAR #IETD
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- FAESETE UBEHER
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and R AN EERFEETEM
license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 R ERERAETOR -
years.
(c)  Computer software (c) BIEEH
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.13),
amount due from a related party, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.14) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group's financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss comprises structured
bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 Bi%EE (#)
2101 748 (&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.1 Classification (continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 M EE (#)
2.103 it 2 (#&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables, short-term loan to an
associate and amount due from a related party, the
impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers both historical default rate and forward-
looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2018 and
2019.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.19

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company's subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

2.19

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERFIEFTHRREBE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs 2.18 FEEM A
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

219 EMRIEEREHR (H)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

219 EMRIEEREHR (F)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

(b)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE ()
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued) 220 EERA (&)

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) RUKZEMT(E)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, RizalRERAZIEERTH
recognised in the consolidated income statement in X Rz R ERA G BN EA
employee benefit expense, except where included RS A A (5T A& EKAE KR
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the SN RBAFEE EEREIE
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee £z RERBAEEILM - @A
service in the current year, benefit changes, HH) BB REH -
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in BEARTE A AR BB TE 1B 25 1R
profit or loss. o
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays HAEHERFEMS &R
contributions to publicly or privately administered WEE"**YM/\%%A@ZL
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, KRB ET EIEH & 6l - & 493k
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no B RV R R A RE
further payment obligations once the contributions REEBREAEMNREE - H
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as FREEB A RERAEER
employee benefit expense when they are due. M-

(b)  Termination benefits (b)  AUFHEFY

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal

EASEERERSLTRIAEH
RIRIEHER BERER

retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts = Q [FE & B A ER B B 1a A
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these BIEBANENA S e AN &
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits IE—J BEGE R I E A R AR

when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RREERFESHBREE (W)

(continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

2.21

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

220 EERH (&)

2.21
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFEFTHRREE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Revenue and other income recognition 222 BREWRBERHEMBBA
(a)  Sales of goods (a) HEEY
Sales are recognised when control of the product HERERZIERIRER R
has transferred, being when the product is on board (BNEE & E m AR R AT IR ) Rt
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation BAIZEBEPEMNER I RE
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the TEARER REREBXR
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have BERRNEAREEEREE
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or BERATA ENIZED EEK
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for REREEP-
acceptance have been satisfied.
Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the KEHEEmZWE HER
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of HESRIEEZBER - BRNHE
financing is deemed present as the sales are made ENREINNRECOR ZF
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days, SHIRMEL (HETISEM —
which is consistent with market practice. B)OMBETRRERA/TE
IE o
No contract liability and right to the returned goods HRIREBTERELRESD
are recognised as insignificant amount of returns ERE BUBEBERESHEE
are expected based on previous experience. KR ERER -
Receivable is recognised when the product is EWHIBEBRARNE RRER
delivered as this is the point in time when the JREA B UL T RAE BB AR 2 B
consideration is unconditional, which only the ME - EAFRREBEETI
passage of time is required before the payment is S ENE
due.
(b) Interest income (b)  FLEHA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion P B AT AER T AR
basis using the effective interest method. When a fE L ) BT RR o e B 3R %
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces WEERHBERE ~NEEEK
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, EHEREEHLZEHEMIA
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at [RB BB 2 EFHT R AR K
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, Be e mRE 2T E K
and continues unwinding the discount as interest B WERERBRTREATR
income. Interest income on impaired loan and WA BREERRERERERZ
receivables is recognised using the original effective LB WA T LA R B B A
interest rate. e
(c)  Dividend income (c) REHA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to 1 T 7 WOBR R IE 2 B ) B - R
receive payment is established. BN T LATER ©
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.23 Leases 2.23 #HE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact
of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

J where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24

2.25

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants do
not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and all
attached condition were complied by the Group, they
are recognised under “other gains—net” in consolidated
income statement upon receipt of the grants.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi
against US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations, which the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$1,442,000 (2018: US$663,000) lower/
higher (2018: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2019, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$21,000 (2018: US$6,000) higher/lower
(2018: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of non-Renminbi-denominated trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other payables in subsidiaries
which use RMB as functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@)  Market risk (continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$28,908,000 (2018: US$21,349,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$11,216,000
(2018: US$14,817,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$123,000 (2018: US$91,000) lower/higher
(2018: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, loan to an associate,
other receivables and amount due from a related

party.

(i) Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, loan to
an associate, other receivables and amount
due from a related party included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2019 and 2018, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 15 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

(i) Impairment of financial assets
While structured bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2019
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be the
most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in this factor.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2019
or 1 January 2019 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HBERIEE ({8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HERBEZR(EF)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) EFEREE(Z)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (iy BHEEZREE)
Trade receivables (continued) BREZER (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 HEHEELF R -F

December 2019 and 31 December 2018
was determined as follows for both trade
receivables and contract assets:

~AE+=B=+—A
R=F—N\E+=A
=+t-RzEKESE

RRAMEEZBRR
WHEEWT:
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZE-nE k] Ik k]
31 December 2019 +ZR=1-H B 121808  181%360H #8360 At
Expected loss rate ki) gk 0.01% 0.22% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount BEAEE
- trade receivables -ERESER
(US$'000) (F%71) 7,940 21,432 233 394 29,999
Loss allowance (US$'000) BiERE(T2R) 1 47 46 394 488
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
BN jak jak jaki
31 December 2018 TZA=+-H il 121808 181Z360H 18360 ait
Expected loss rate ki) gk 0.01% 0.23% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
~ trade receivables -ERESER
(Us$'000) (T%7) 28,129 4,818 m 430 33,649
Loss allowance (US$'000) BREE(TXL) 3 11 54 430 498

As at 31 December 2019, the loss allowances
for trade receivables were US$488,000 (2018:

US$498,000). Management are of opinion
that that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

R-F—N%E+= A
=+-B BUEHE

K2 B 18R 1% A488,000
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables, loan to an associate and
amount due from a related party

The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is zero.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERGEE (§)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BERBEER (&)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) () HRBELER (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial TH|RIEIEEEBEAHEH
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based Her TG AR EE 2 %8
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BN REWIBRAERETS
date to the contractual maturity date. The M-MEBRTFRECEERSE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARBBERERE -

undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years  Over5 years Total
-£R -EE@ME MEZRE BREEF &
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEL TER TEr TER TERL
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
t-A=1+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M) 25,371 4,563 10,081 1,866 41,881
Lease liabilities (Note) BERR (M) 198 282 1,128 2,319 3,927
Trade payables EHESER 12,784 - - - 12,784
Other payables and accruals ~ E BN B REER 8,585 - - - 8,585
Amount due to a related party EREEEATZE 1,351 - - - 1,351
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\EF
t-A=1-H
Bank borrowings (Note) HfEE () 21,007 8,280 8,340 - 37,627
Trade payables RERES 20,875 - - - 20,875
Other payables and accruals ~ EHENTBREER 7,056 - - - 7,056
Amounts due to related parties EFBEEALFE 1,391 - - - 1,391
Note: B e :
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings EHEZEHPREEZESHARR
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEERHEEEEREMN ZFIE -
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BFXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REFRETEES B ERREARSE
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going BREEB A EREELCE ZEN A
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders AR R B R A H A 15 D& 5
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an A ARKERFE B2 RGN
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. B A o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BT HRBARENERE  AEEA
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BERARRNTREZKRESEE MR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new REER BITHROIEEEE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. VAR B (B 75 o
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total
borrowings include non-current bank borrowings, current
borrowings, non-current lease liabilities and current lease
liabilities.

During 2019, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2018, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
as follows:

3

MERBEEE (&)

3.2

EXEE (&)
HENHEMAR] - AEENEE
BELESEEERER X
REARERBERMRZBREERIA
BAAESE - REEREIFRD
ROTBE ABHEE JFRDEER
BEERBEEAG:

RIZE—NF AEEZRBEE_ZT
—N\FERMNEER B DHEFE
EABLERRAEKE - R-T—H
FRZFE-NF+ZA=+—8Z

BEBGBLENT:

2019 2018

—E—hEF —ZT-N\F

Us$’000 Us$'000

SPEw FET

Total borrowings BIEE 43,251 36,166
Owners’ equity (including non- WA AR (B A

controlling interest in equity) Mz IR ) 287,727 286,682

Gearing ratio EEBGELE 15.0% 12.6%

The gearing ratio increased from 12.6% to 15.0%
following the adoption of HKFRS16 Leases. Both net debt
and gross assets increased following the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on 1 January 2019.
See Notes 2.2 for further information.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, prepayments, amount due from
a related party, structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposit and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, amount due to a related party and trade
and other payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values because of their short maturities. The carrying
value of the long-term other receivables approximates its
fair value as it was estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERGEE (§)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)
(i) Fair value hierarchy () D FEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates REMBEE TRV B REAR
made in determining the fair values of the financial AFERRNRGEN ST E
instruments that are recognised and measured at OSSN R (s N oR2 - DS ]
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an e RBHEERAFEMAEH
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in ABEHASENIER A&EH
determining fair value, the Group has classified its mesrEARESEERIA
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed DEAEZEZBE-
under the accounting standards.
Level 2
ot
US$'000
FET
Recurring fair value measurements EEMRNFEFSE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NAF+-_A=+—H
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value through  EAFEFABENTHBEE
profit or loss 2,293
Recurring fair value measurements WEMRFEFTE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—H
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFABENTBEE
profit or loss 8,888
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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a

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam, Cambodia and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments,
and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments, and segment liabilities are
based on the geographical location of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$39,526,000 (2018:
US$43,301,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group's revenue (2018: same).

SHEH

ITEEERRECHEREBNTES
WITESEH AR B 2 BR MER AR Z
RARDHER AEEREBEEIRZER
REMBHLANHEREREZEMZ
JIEENHES (RTX) - IEERBR
DRSS D EEARZ L DREE - B
FRBEE (ERITAKRIN RO HEE-

ITBEEERAREIZNHBEREASNE
o NEED B AELEZMERE - 50K
BUABEFPAEMEED HEBEAIL
DHEE NEFERDEE (TRMT AR
S EDERBRIAEESBEMELE

e

B3y &ﬁ%IE*E%E%ﬂ’EE"*BFﬁF
ErzWEREREEFERT -Eit-
MERRERNKEER -

U 2 49539,526,000% T ( =& — N\
£ 143,301,000k 70) BRBE B A ZE—
INBRE - RBKBKEW®REAEES
H-HEEMTEAPBAEMAERE S
10%sk A £ (ZZ—N\F:HA) °

(a) Segment revenue (a) #PWWEHE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
us$’'000 Us$'000
FEx FET

By geographical location: T IB A E B D
Vietnam igEa) 177,635 177,753
Japan H K 64,820 63,015
The PRC a3 43,669 39,004
America EE 21,394 20,327
Taiwan =9 16,734 17,335

ASEAN member countries HHKE

(other than Vietnam) (T EEEM) 26,857 31,593
Other regions E b b 6,748 7,745
357,857 356,772
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWEHE(K)
(a) Segment revenue (continued) (a) DIz (E)
2019 2018
—Z-h#F —E-)N\F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Timing of revenue recognition e 2 7 2R B P
At a point in time AR — R 357,857 356,772
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities AL B EER W
The Group receives payments from certain customers REFRRBITANIBRE TEP
in advance of the performance under the contracts. Z AR o FREETR AN B e
The following table shows how much of the revenue RZWmHEES OB E 2 EERE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to e
carried-forward contract liabilities.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Revenue recognised that was AFVEHNBEESRZ
included in the contract liabilities BRI A
balance at the beginning of
the year 1,993 1,296
(b) Capital expenditures (b) EBEAXZH
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F
Us$‘000 US$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam 5 17,548 25,396
The PRC s 221 121
Cambodia R - 3
17,769 25,520
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on BARYHDIRBEEEME DA
where the assets are located. ZEDE -
Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant BASTHBEEREME HEEXK
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. H T ERERBEEE-
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management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation,

e MBERRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEH(HE)
() Assets () EE
2019 2018
—E-hEF T —N\F
Us$‘000 US$ 000
FEx FET
Vietnam B 312,728 308,623
The PRC H 42,797 45,544
Hong Kong B 10,972 12,358
Taiwan =0 | 2,599 704
Singapore 3 n 236 487
Cambodia RIERE 144 89
Total assets per consolidated GEBEEBERMAT
balance sheet BERE 369,476 367,805
Total assets are attributed to segments based on where BEEBENDRBEEEMTEMM S AR
the assets are located. EEDHe
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME HWELRZHEHRE

EBREED
B EmEE R - MT?%R“ o EBEYIE
MEEEHN E -BE /R

impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense R MR 2 AR (BE) s F
and share of (loss)/profit of an associate for each B 2 o
operating segment.
Impairment Share of
Amortisation of non- (loss)/profit
and current Income tax of an
depreciation asset expense associate
ERBEE BEEE LT
BERTE HE  ASREEX (B8)8H
Us$'000 us$'o00 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTET Txr Txn Fxn
2019 ZEB-NE
Vietnam HiFg 19,832 - 4,092 (99)
The PRC H 683 3,580 134 -
Others Hit 1 - 2 -
20,516 3,580 4,228 (99)
2018 —N%F
Vietnam i 17,648 - 4,361 44
The PRC H 965 - 242 -
Others HAh - - 10 -
18,613 - 4,613 44
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

(e)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments,

5

SEHEH(#\)

(d) ZRUBIASZHFRBDEE (ERMIA

by location: BRM) -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
SRE FET
Vietnam 5 152,205 151,333
The PRC a8 12,704 17,029
Cambodia RIEEE 2 3
Total &&F 164,911 168,365
Liabilities (e) B&fE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam HiE 70,792 72,860
The PRC s 4,451 3,751
Hong Kong BE 4,444 3,338
Taiwan =9 1,993 1,108
Singapore o 48 46
Cambodia RIEEE 21 20
Total liabilities per consolidated GEEEBEXRMAT
balance sheet BERTE 81,749 81,123
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

+ ith 5 A 4
AEBER T ERE 2 EREREEENZ
BNRE HREFEDTET

2019 2018

ZE-hF —E-N\F

US$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January mn—H—H 1,892 2,042

Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) o b {5 R A

(BFsE23) = (52)

Exchange differences N Z% - (98)
Reclassification to right-of-use asset BN EEFEAREE

(Note 2.2) (Mi7¥2.2) (1.892) -

At 31 December W+tZA=+—H - 1,892

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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e MR

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
EEIR NE  BERES RE  BOZERE Ch
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
T TER TER TER TER TEn
At 1 January 2018 R=B-N§¥-A—-H
Cost A 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment ZiRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE_E-0\%
TZR=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
Additions RE 22,628 152 1,875 410 455 25,520
Transfer iR (15,332) 1,868 13,272 - 192 -
Disposals (Note 31) & (H3E31) - (30) (436) (5) (@) (512)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (Hfe23) - (3,386) (14,114) (583) (346) (18,429)
Exchange differences ERERE (1) (305) (79) (15) 3) (403)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=t—-H
Cost A 18,651 108,862 460,387 9,322 19,749 616,971
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE - (75,988) (359,923) (7,141) (17,924) (460,976)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207
Net book amount FEFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_E-hE
TZR=Z+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FONEAFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Additions RE 14,548 271 1,616 873 456 17,764
Transfer B (7,223) 598 6,328 - 297 -
Disposals (Note 31) & (H3E31) - (24) (79) (6) @ (116)
Depreciation (Note 23) e (HE23) - (3,023) (16,265) (560) (396) (20,244)
Exchange differences EXRZERE - (93) 21 4) @ (120)
Closing net book amount FREBFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AF+ZA=t—-H
Cost A 25,976 108,080 463,110 9,857 20,160 627,183
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE - (77,477) (371,067) (7,373) (17,987) (473,904)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207
Net book amount FHFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
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assets.

(i)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 ME - RERRME (&)
Depreciation expense of US$19,142,000 (2018: PFER 19,142,000 T (ZF— )\ :
US$17,220,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$258,000 17,220,0003€ 7T ) * 258,000kt (= &
(2018: US$267,000) in selling and distribution expenses and — \% :267,000% JT) % 844,000% T
US$844,000 (2018: US$942,000) in administrative expenses. —ZF— J\F :942,000% 70) B 9 5 #

ERAHE RS HEAZURITHAXZF
ko
During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs FRN - AEBEHREGEREENBEN
amounting to US$283,000 (2018: US$274,000) on qualifying 78283,000% 5T ( = Z — A\ : 274,000%
T)BFRER
8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY 8 FRHERERHERAR
Amount recognised in the consolidated balance (i) RECEEABREIANSHE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following FEEEAGBRHSIATEHEE
amounts relating to leases: EalEokaA-c
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-AF —ZT—NF
+=A=+-H —A—A
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXE7x FET
Land use rights 5 A A 1,812 1,892
Leasehold lands HME LT 1,796 1,965
Building B¥F 1,458 507
Equipment g 7 9
Total right-of-use assets FREEERRE 5,073 4,373
Current lease liabilities RBHEAE 111 166
Non-current lease liabilities ERBHER®E 3,016 2,315
Total lease liabilities HEBERRE 3,127 2,481
Here is the movement of right of use assets for the year: FRNEREEENEHNT
2019
—E-hEF
Us$'000
FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 4,373
Addition for the year FRRE 1,426
Termination of contract during the year FREZIEEH (550)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets i AR E E S (145)
Exchange differences N E5 (31
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 5,073
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8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITY 8 HHESERBEABR(E)
(continued)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) REAUWERBANSEHE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FelmixEIIATERBEES#ADN
amounts relating to leases: -l
2019 2018
—E—-hE —ZT—N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Amortisation charged of FRAEEER
right-of-use assets: BB 8
Land use rights Tt {5 A 48 49 -
Leasehold lands ME T 82 -
Building BgF 13 -
Equipment B 1 -
145 -
Interest expense (included in B X
finance cost) (FTAE B H) 94 -
Expense relating to short-term leases EIRHIFHEFBEMRA X
(included in cost of goods sold and (FFABEEERKA X
administrative expenses) THBHEX) 30 -

(iii)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
US$354,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold lands, buildings and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 5 to 50 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iii)

TE-NFHENRESRERER
354,000 7T °

FEENEEZTIRAREEED
2%
FEEHEZHEBELH BFRR
- HEANABRITALERTFN
[ 7E HA R o 7 B2 T 7 {8 b E 7 k1
7 BB R AR R
TH & Wh 5 3 B A0 AT 2258 (1
HAMFEREREMNK TSR
SN ETHERETSRAFEREENK
e
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 ELEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
e BHRER [ &t
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn FTEn TEn
At 1 January 2018 R=B-N§-A-H
Cost AR 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation ZEtH#H - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount REHE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-N\§
+=ZA=+-BLLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BERZ (H:123) - (122) (10) (132)
Exchange differences EHEE (372) - - (372)
Closing net book amount FREEZE 8,120 374 72 8,566
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+ZA=1+-H
Cost A 8,120 2,008 12,189 22,317
Accumulated amortisation R H - (1,634) (12,117) (13,751)
Net book amount REFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ-Z-n%
TZBEt+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BERAT (H:23) - (17 (9) (126)
Additions NE - 5 - 5
Impairment loss (Note 9) AEEE (M:19) (3,580) - - (3,580)
Exchange differences EHREE (119) - - (119)
Closing net book amount FREEZE 4,421 262 63 4,746
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NAE+=A=1+-H
Cost A 8,001 2,013 12,189 22,203
Accumulated amortisation ZEHHH - (1,751) (12,126) (13,877)
Accumulated impairment 2ETHE (3,580) - - (3,580)
Net book amount REFE 4,421 262 63 4,746

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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BEBRE (W)
EERER :

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’'s CGUs according to AEDRBEAEEEESHHEERIIR

operating segment. BB
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
P B Ok A KA
VELEE S HEEEER BEr
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FETT FET
At 31 December 2019 RZE—-NF+ZHA=+—H 3,691 730 4,421
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—\&F+-_A=+—H 7,390 730 8,120

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU”) and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). As management considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher, the recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on VIU calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond the
five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG related
business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

EREREAERRRSEM ([HRIGR
sEUDMNEREE (EREEIDER
FEBEERA (R FERBERA])
MEFHNRSEEETARDSE -ARE
EERREREEETHARESER
= AU REBGR 2 B 2 AT E 2 5T IA
AEEREAEZTAEE %ZEEEN
ERNEEERRICEFTEMECTESF
MM BRESH ZRHAMR S REBTRAE
T BEAFHZAERECAUTHZ
2B REER (WER) - BRET
RN RIIR BT EE 2 KEHEE
BRRMFHERX-

RUAGHEHRBERERERRR S EURE
ZEMBEZETZREW -

The PRC
FE

2019 2018

—E-hF ZE-)N\F

Growth rate in sales volume HESHRE 2.1%-5% -11%-6.3%

Growth rate in sales price HEBHERE 0%-2.5% 0%-7.4%

Gross margin E R 17.4%-21.3% 12.9%-27.5%
Other operating costs per annum GEHEMEEKAR

(US$'000) (F%7T) 1,966-2,113 2,005-2,297

Long term growth rate RHERX 3% 3%

Discount rate AhIA & 14.8% 15.0%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on VIU calculation is
lower than its carrying value and therefore a provision for
impairment of goodwill of US$3.58 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2019. A decrease in annual
sales volume growth rate of 32%, a decrease in annual sales
price growth rate of 1%, a decrease in gross margin of 3%, an
increase in annual operating costs of 2%, a fall in long term
growth rate of 18% or an increase in discount rate of 23%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.
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10 SUBSIDIARIES 10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2019:

B 2 B
THARZBE-AFE+A=+—HZ=E

EHEAREE:

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
ERAL/ R rREREZ  FEREZKEZ
8 UREEERER TEXBREENY BRT/BRRAHE EERLA EERLA
Directly held:
BRHE
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited BEXEHS EERRERR 100R B REME1FTH
([RBERES]) AR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RBRLHES EERRERR 100R B REE1F T
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. g ERMBEREER 61,109,000% 7t & &%
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. A EHMEREER 20,177,000 L& @R
Veedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 167,871,967 Ordinary 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical shares of US$1 each
products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
A (M) RAERAR it EHBSEREERBRQMMA £ 167,871 967K B
ERRRERNIS$ER BERE: AEIETH
AEE SURD BERLK AR LER
RO
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and 15$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
LERALEERARA R ERERXRHERE BHREK 9,800,000 7T
BREELRA ARE AMER
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
EMEARRERAT : ERERRRHERE BHREK 20,270,000% 7T
BREERA ARH HMER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EMARELNESBRAR TE EHEEEAZENIXER 254,000% 7T
BREERA EMER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd RERE RREFUSERRGAME £0ER  FMEA2,640,000,000
RABRAIXERHERLND ]

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
all its equity interests in Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise

Co., Ltd.. For details, please refer to note 35.

BHE-Z-NF+-A=+—BL=FE"
AEBHEERURKASEEEZERA

AzEiEmE - AT
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 11 RBEBLATRZERE
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows: REERA 2 IHE BT
2019 2018
—E-NF T=—N\F
uUs$’000 US$ 000
FEx FET
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 6,119 3,555
Capital contribution to an associate  [AH& A &EE (HisE)
(note) - 2,520
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of FE(R B & R RIBR 1%
an associate (BER)#7H (99) 44
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 6,020 6,119

Note:

There was a capital contribution of US$2,520,000 to an associate
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The capital contribution
was made in proportion to the Group’s shareholding in the associate

and accordingly there is no change in the percentage of Group's

shareholding in the associate after capital contribution for the year.

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December

2019 and 2018:

B 5 :

REBE-ZE—-N\F+_A=+—RHIFEZMH
— & A AEE2,520,0005 7T ° JE & JhIE AR
EERBERRZREBLLAIEL AERFR

7

TEE ABBATZREES LB EES -

4)%1

~NFRZF—N\F+ZP=+—

i
=N %/AHZ&,%EIEEZZDT

E&

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L MR LEAR BRTRAFE BKEREE% FTERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMBEBRZERERA A i3 21,027,559 & % T vk

T A 13E 7T 2 B

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development

in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and

there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2018:
US$112,000) in relation to the Group’s investment in the

associate.
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 11 RBREBATZRE (8)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information HRERBSELHER
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—N\F
uUs$’000 Us$'o00
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BzEERHE 20,396 11,850
Increase in share capital [i& 7 38 n - 8,400
Profit for the year F R (329) 146
Net assets as at 31 December R+-—BA=+—-—BZEERE 20,067 20,396
Interest in an associate (30%) R E Qa2 (30%) 6,020 6,119
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 BN ZEMIA
2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REERATECHEEE
— Long-term other receivables — R B HE b FE U RIA 472 725
— Trade receivables —EWE FERR 29,511 33,151
— Other receivables — current portion — —H b fE Uk 18 — B1EAZE & 2,813 2,719
— Amount due from a related party —EWEREEALTHRE 954 1,191
— Short-term bank deposits and —REHRTEXRLREER
pledged bank deposits |ITFER 15,980 15,342
— Cash and cash equivalents -BeMREEEY 41,127 34,215
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFABRZPBEE
profit or loss
— Structured bank deposits —EBHRITER 2,293 8,888
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ IREEE AN E 2 BB B E
— Trade payables — BB ZERXK 12,784 20,875
— Other payables and accruals —HibhERHIERETEHA 8,585 7,056
— Amounts due to related parties —JERBRAE AT IR 1,351 1,391
- Bank borrowings —RITIEE 40,124 36,166
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13 INVENTORIES 13 &8
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'o00
FEx FET
Consumables SEFE M 5,875 7,184
Raw materials JR A1 48,688 48,078
Work in progress £ & 4,199 5,692
Finished goods ZUEK fm 37,293 30,468
96,055 91,422
Less: Provision for impairment losses on W EREE B
inventories (227) (320)
95,828 91,102
The cost of inventories of US$234,769,000 (2018: 7&K 7234,769,000F T (ZF—/\F:
US$238,143,000) has been charged in cost of sales. 238,143,000% 7T ) BT ASHE KA

The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included BEREERRN 2 FERAEME R REE

in cost of sales amounted to US$7,000 (2018: US$30,000) and 2SR A7,000% 7T (—Z — )\ £ : 30,0003

US$93,000 (2018: US$400,000), respectively. 70) %93,000% 7T (== — /L : 400,000
e
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BERESEFREMEKRRIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'o00
FXxt FET
Trade receivables from third parties EWE=FEZER 29,999 33,649
Less: loss allowance W E R R (488) (498)
Trade receivables —net ERE SRR —FHE 29,511 33,151
Prepayments T FRIB 14,362 9,672
VAT recoverable BEdEEEET 1,068 1,194
Other receivables o FE YRR 3,320 3,324
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) BTHERRIZER
(Kt3E(b)) 122 120
48,383 47,461
Less: non-current portion of prepayments & : T8 15 7B K H th fE Uk
and other receivables RIB 2 FEENEAEE (2.897) (725)
Current portion B S 45,486 46,736
The carrying values of the Group's trade receivables REBEREKRE SEFRZREELREL A TE
approximate their fair values. B o
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the B RIE £ EAE SR BE R M BE A 8%
purchase of raw materials. The non-current portion of other B-RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H Hft
receivables as at 31 December 2018 include the outstanding JEWGRIBZ IERN A D BIEE B S5
balance in relation to the disposal of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24). 7 2 RMERIE & 8R (I EE24) -
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14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based
on invoice date is as follows:

14 BERSHERRAMERET (&)
BRESERZEEHNFEINRERE
60K - AREEAIAE TEFRHEBKREE
H MEXRREEFGZHEER B
WESRFIEERZARRRINOT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

Us$'000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 - 30 days 0&30K 21,622 21,372
31 - 90 days 31290k 6,906 10,870
91 - 180 days 912180k 697 789
181 — 365 days 1812365k 354 251
Over 365 days 365K A & 420 367
29,999 33,649

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair
values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2018 and
2019 are the carrying amounts of trade receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

ENRBEYRIAZEMNE  AREE
R BEE R FEEE -

RZE-NEFRZE-NF+ZA=1+—
AR A EERRK A ME 5 EIGK
BZEEE AEETEFETAERSR
{EHE IR -

FE W B 5 Bk 0 e HAth B W R 2 BRENE 1R
NI EREHE:

2019 2018
—BE-hE —E-N\F

USs$’000 US$'000

SPEw FET

Vietnam Dong HEE 20,958 19,680
Us$ ETT 15,714 18,453
New Taiwan dollar e - 16
Renminbi AR 8,878 5,407
Others EHith 2,833 3,905
48,383 47,461
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

14 BERSERRAMEKRET (&)

Loss allowance of trade receivables (a) EHREZRRZEBRBE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to REEERAEETBWMEERER
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime Bl A2 BBMEEEE  AFE
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FEWE ZRFEA TR EE R
e
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 RZE-NF+A=+—BZE
December 2019 reconciles to the opening loss allowance SEWFIE 2 FRE BB EREY
as follows: EEBEHEHERENT
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZT-N\F
Us$’000 US$'000
TXEx FET
Opening loss allowance W—A—BZFY]
as at 1 January E e B 498 511
Decrease in loss allowance RERNGZERERFP
recognised in consolidated Rz BEBERD
income statement during the year (10) (13)
Closing loss allowance R+ZA=+—RH2
as at 31 December EREERE 488 498
The creation of provision for impaired receivables FERE R FIEEL O BED
have been included in administrative expenses in the MNFAE R FTWITEH S - R E
consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the R M SE — RN TERE KR
allowance account are generally written off when there is BEIR R -
no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do B E 5 BR A R B A W SRIB A 2
not contain impaired assets. HBER T T REEREEE-
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REER ReEERMBE DR
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable RIFEW AR S 2 BREE » NSRBI Rt
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral UL B AR R EE R -
as security.
Loan to an associate (b) #HF—HEEELATNZER

As at 31 December 2019, there is a loan to an associate
of US$122,000 (2018: US$120,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and
due for repayment on 21 May 2021.

R-ZE—NE+=-A=+—H 47
—EE QN E 2 ERAE122,000% T
(ZZ— \fF:120,000F 7T ) * %
FIEAERKE REFRIER B
AETTAE WEARZ-ZT=_—FHA
—t+—RHEE-
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15 BHeRBASCEFEY SEHRBRITE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS R EHETERRECENETER
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
SPEw FET
Short-term bank deposits with original REBEREB=EAZ
maturity over three months RHRITER 12,166 15,342
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) DEMIEITER
(M5E@)) 3,814 -
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) ERMEIRITER
(F 5 (b)) 2,293 8,888
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 41,127 34,215
59,400 58,445

As at 31 December 2019, cash at bank of US$40,962,000
(2018: US$34,003,000) and bank deposits of US$18,273,000
(2018: US$24,230,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of
Us$10,661,000 (2018: US$14,950,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$43,469,000 (2018: US$38,864,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

RZE—-—AE+_A=+—8 #£17
I £40,962,000E€ 0 (= — N\ F:
34,003,000 7T ) M #R 1717 5£18,273,000
ZEJt (=& — \% : 24,230,000 7)) B &
EERRK -

PR P EIERTHR P 2 & €©10,661,000% 7T

— T — )\ :14,950,000%5T) K& [E i
FRITER P 2 & £43,469,000FE T (=&
— J\4F :38,864,000% jT) /A& T H B &
5 5 BT 9 SN B 1 45 0 o

AEEZRHENACEEY BHARTHE
RRAEBERTERBEATERHE:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

USs$°000 US$'000

SPESTE FET

Vietnam Dong MR A 28,560 18,733
Us$ eV 18,102 24,526
Renminbi AR 10,704 14,845
Hong Kong dollar BT 89 91
New Taiwan dollar ek 1,944 247
Others Hih 1 3
59,400 58,445
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end

16

15 B&

RASERY BHBERTHE

R EMBTERRCEHFBTFER
(%)

RBERR AEBZ BEREFNEE 0N

of the reporting period were as follows: ™
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Short-term bank deposits with original REBEREB=EAZ
maturity over three months RHRITER 6.1% 5.8%
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) EEHRITER
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank balances RZZE—NF+ZA=+—H K%
amounting to US$3,814,000 (2018: Nil) were deposited B KR 1T 45 83,814,000 L (=&
at designated bank accounts in certain banks as —N\F ) ERAEETFER
guarantee deposits for certain letter of credits released to WETERRBOERERERET
the Group's customers. RITHIEEIRITERP o
(b) Structured bank deposits (b) #HEMBRTER
As at 31 December 2019, the structured bank deposits RZE-NF+A=+—80" 4%
amounting to US$2,293,000 (2018: US$8,888,000) I ER1T 17 502,293,000F L (=&
investments in wealth management products issued by — J\# : 8,888,000 7T) AN IR 1T
banks. Changes in fair value of these investments were BITHEMERNERE ZFREN
recongised in “other gains-net” in the consolidated AEESZPREERERERA [H
income statement. fh Yo st —FEE ] o
SHARE CAPITAL 16 BEX

Authorised ordinary shares

EEEBER
Par value Number
us$ of shares USs$'000
HEXT RO E FER
At 1 January 2018, RZE-NF—-—A—AH"
31 December 2018, —T-N\Ft+tZA=+—H8"
1 January 2019 and ZT-NF—-A-Bk
31 December 2019 —T-NAF+-_A=+—8H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRBEEER
Par value Number
us$ of shares Us$'000
HEXT RoEE FER
At 1 January 2018, RZE-NF—-—A—H"
31 December 2018, —E-NF+-A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and “T-NE—-A-Bk
31 December 2019 —EZ-hF+ZA=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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17 RESERVES 17 s
Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve earnings Total
(Note (a))  (Note (b))
ROEE EXRE AHRE  EERE  RE2RA A%t
(PeE@)  (MFE(D))
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FER TER TER TER TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\$—H—H 47,358 13,114 79,994 783 128,933 270,182
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year KEERR - - - - 14,285 14,285
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EER
Currency translation differences [ & Z %8 - (2,057) - - - (2,057)
Total comprehensive income  2HKALE - (2,057) - - 14,285 12,228
Total transactions with BREBAZARZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BRI E (Hi3E26) - - - - (11,282) (11,282)
Reallocation of statutory reserve STl B4 E # - - - 45 (45) -
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\%F
+ZA=+—"H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—F—H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year KERHER - - - - 15,563 15,563
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EER
Currency translation differences  [E % %3 - (576) - - - (576)
Release of exchange reserve & — B A AR
upon disposal of a subsidiary FRRIE N R - (3,707) - - - (3,707)
Total comprehensive income  ZHEKAHZE - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280
Total transactions with BEBEACARZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) EARE (FizE26) - - - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 i R:2
+-A=+-H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
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17 RESERVES (continued)

18

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

fiti o (48)

GEE

(a)

(b)

BUfHEE

AEENAHBEREERBER-_TT_F
TZAZTREBEROEESEMKE
P8 A ) O B AN T K B A0 i (B R AR
BIFEITRIAM BT AT ENEZR

EERE

B R EIRRERA BFMNZ10%EEE
AEE BEEREREHRAAEMERZ
50% ° CARRA B AE X E RS AT
PRNEERFERIE N AR EME
o FRAAMATBSARFTNABEM
BAREL25% °

18 EFNRHER ErBARAMEMS

PAYABLES %5
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Us$‘000 US$'000
FTER FET
Non-current FEENHA
Long-term environmental provision RERFEEB 444 387
Current BN 58
Trade payables JETE SRR 12,784 20,875
Accruals et &M 8,240 8,567
Payable of purchase of property, ENBEME BE K&
in N st o
plant and equipment and R M DA B s SERR AN TR
construction costs 3,437 2,517
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) araE (M) 2,506 1,993
Other payables b FE T FRR 4,633 3,797
31,600 37,749
Total trade payables, accruals and BN E SRR Bt &R
Eod
other payables R E AP SRR AR 32,044 38,136
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18 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 18 FEfHIE 5 0B S - M &t 0% A R 2L A P

PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2019, the ageing of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

I (#8)
R-Z-NF+-_A=+T—B ENHES
ERREZAHZREET:

2019 2018

ZE-hF —ZT-N\F

Us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

0 - 30 days 0&30K 11,976 19,232
31 - 90 days 31290k 808 1,634
91 — 180 days 91E 180K - -
181 — 365 days 1812365k - -
Over 365 days 365K A & - 9
12,784 20,875

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

AEBZENEZRN B ERNEMD
FENRIEZ BREER T E%EHE:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
US$'000 US$'000
FEr FET
Vietnam Dong HMEE 9,382 19,569
us$ =7 14,467 14,561
New Taiwan Dollar e 21 1,091
Renminbi AR 8,019 2,709
Euro BT - 22
Others Ei 155 184
32,044 38,136

(a) Contract liabilities (a) BHEE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.
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19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 SRITHESE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'o00
FEx FET
Non-current FE BD HA
— Long-term bank borrowings — —REIRITIER
secured — B 18,213 19,189
- Long-term bank borrowings — —REIRTTE K
unsecured — R 6,912 7,804
Less: current portion of long-term B RHERITERZ
bank borrowings BNHEAER & (9,749) (11,296)
15,376 15,697
Current B H#A
— Short-term bank borrowings — 5 BRERATIE K
— secured — B 8,892 6,352
— Short-term bank borrowings — 5 BRERATIE K
— unsecured — KR 6,107 2,821
— Current portion of long-term —RERITIERZ
bank borrowings — secured BNERES > — B HH 7,347 8,950
— Current portion of long-term —REBRITERZ
bank borrowings — unsecured B EREB 5 — K 2,402 2,346
24,748 20,469
Total bank borrowings RITIEE R 40,124 36,166
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19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 SRITHE (8)
At 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings were RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 AXEEZ
repayable as follows: RITEREBANATEHRREEE:
2019 2018
—E—hEF —ZT-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Within 1 year —FR 24,748 20,469
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 4,394 7,966
Between 2 and 5 years MFEERF 9,361 7,731
Over 5 years AFEUE 1,621 -
40,124 36,166
The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate RS BIR - AN B S B R ) F & &
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the PRAaNEMITERHOT:
reporting period are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
Us$’000 US$'000
FTER FET
Within 6 months 6fE AR 18,921 14,183
Between 7 and 12 months 7E128 A 4,645 5,104
Between 1 and 5 years 1254 14,937 16,879
Over 5 years SEFLAE 1,621 -
40,124 36,166
The carrying values of the Group's borrowings approximate AEBEEZREEREQNTERES -

their fair values.
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19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's

|MITEE ()

RBEMR AREBEZEBRFN XN

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: ™~
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
us$ ETT 2.6% 2.6%
New Taiwan dollar e 2.0% -

The carrying amounts of the Group's
denominated in the following currencies:

borrowings are

AEBEEEZREERATERE:

2019 2018
—Z-h#F —N\F
Us$’000 US$'000
TEx FET
uss$ eV 38,131 36,166
New Taiwan dollar Fek 1,993 -
40,124 36,166
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: KEBBUTARREAGERE
2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Floating rate: FE
— Expiring within one year —R—FRNEIH 104,916 75,584
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&EIH 33,734 32,419
Fixed rate: R
— Expiring within one year —R—F AN EIH 474 -
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&E|H 9,299 -
148,423 108,003
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has aggregate RZZE-hE+A=+—H Kx&HE
bank facilities of approximately US$193,516,000 (2018: A H A A E#I193,516,0003k T 2 R1T
US$144,169,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and BtE (—Z — )\4F : 144,169,000 T ) 1k
other general banking facilities. Unutilized amount as at RIBTEE BHMEREM—RIRTH

31 December 2019 amounted to US$148,423,000 (2018:
US$108,003,000).

The Group’s bank borrowings of US$28,548,000 as at 31
December 2019 (2018: US$25,541,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

B-R-_ZT—NAE+_A=+—"H8B %5
4% /148,423,000 (—F— \&:
108,003,000%7T) °

AEER_ZT—NAF+_A=+—8
A #28,548,000F Tt (=& — J\F :
25,541,000%70) 2 RITEE IR AR &
B ARIERIEAET-
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EEFFA
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary BERMSHIORBAEEUAAREEEERRN
differences under the liability method using the principal tax EEREBERHNFENEJAAE TR ZELT
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: REMEHEBEZTHOT:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPESTE FET
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R B iB1218 A & U El
recovered after more than 12 months ZIEEFTSTBE 2,705 3,238
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as BEEMGHEZESFREAT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 3,238 3,263
Credited to consolidated income statement & A4RA Wz X
(Note 25) (M¥7E25) (533) (25)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 2,705 3,238
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities AEFRLEFMBHEERBE (Rt LK
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting SHAR R BIAE B ARE R B 45 BR AT ) B0 & Bh 40
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T~
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEBHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MERERE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
us$'000 US$'000
FEx FZET
At 1 January m—A—H 4,655 4,526
Charged to consolidated income statement 4R & Wz R R0 K (293) (83)
At 31 December BR+=—A=+—8 4,362 4,443
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 20 EEFRER(E)

Deferred income tax assets

EEFMEHEE

Other temporary differences

HitnErE =4
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZE-N\F
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—A—H (1,417) (1,263)
Credited to consolidated income statement FF A&RA WX (240) 58
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H” (1,657) (1,205)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$931,000 (2018: US$924,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income tax
assets of US$372,000 (2018: US$490,000) in respect of the
unrecognised tax loss of US$1,489,000 (2018: US$1,959,000).
These tax losses for PRC corporate income tax purposes
will expire within five years. Tax losses of nil (2018: US$
nil), US$20,000 (2018: US$19,000), US$1,469,000 (2018:
US$1,940,000) will expire within one year, within two years and
within three to five years respectively.

RIEREPEMESHE AEBEETHE
WBARBE=-ZEZENF—A—HEBEXL
B3 F) - B 2R TONRILE E 80 FliR
10% B Tt SR B AN TR FN A o BB A AN & [ 422
ZEPBEMBRARZRERSK  BAEME
ZHEMBAR R FIENL B A
ANRATEE R A R 2R B Bl - B0 gk 32 55
TR EREERELEMSEH B E931,0003%
7T (== — )\ 4% :924,0003 7t ) A B K
BRRIKRELORFEER XA AR
BEETS -

BEAMEHMEENPBRRGF S ES
IR PR ER B s ) 5 R B A BT A B O B T RS
BIERER ALEEEEAERMEES
1,489,000% jt ( =Z — /L4 : 1,959,000
EIL) 2 RERBLEMSH A E /372,000
ZE 5L (=ZF— )\ :490,000%7T) ° 5t F
BIEMEHEME 2ZSBHEERBR
FFEREBH-MBEBEEZET(ZE—N
F:EZEIL) 2 20,000EF T (=T — N\ F:
19,000% JT) ~ 1,469,000% 7t ( —F — 1\
11,940,000 L) 5 AR —F R - /M
FRNUAR=FERFRNEE-
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21 REVENUE 21

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup,
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 were US$357,857,000 and
US$356,772,000 respectively.

2
REBREREEEERMANNA - £
ERERAERMDIEXER BIEZHER
WBAREE KB HRITRER-HE—
T-NFERE-N\F+ZA=+—8HI
FEER2WE D B A357,857,000% 7T
%356,772,0003 7T ©

22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hfttriz— B8
2019 2018
Y Wy —E—-N\%F
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net exchange losses b 5 18558 (117) (289)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIEHEZ
held for sales EMBEEZ W - 307
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BWFE R
plant and equipment B ok (113) (426)
Impairment of amount due from JRE M BT B8 2 ) FEAE AR
the non-controlling interest of 2 RIE R E
a subsidiary - (68)
Sales of scrap materials EERHEEE 452 454
Government grant X /6 BN 160 219
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 35) & —RIKM B QA 2z W
(M$5E35) 3,940 -
Impairment of goodwill (Note 9) EERE (M 5E9) (3,580) -
Others Hit 351 262
1,093 459
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

23 RUEHESMZAX
HERA  HERDHAS RITRAX A

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZAZSWAT:
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Changes in inventories and FEKERERERE

consumables used (Note 13) (FF3E13) 234,769 238,143
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & E# Y (H5E9) 126 132
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) s {58 PR M 8 (B[ EE6) - 52
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 8) {5 F3 # & EE # 4% (Ff13E8) 145 -
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI B &

— Audit services —ZHR 355 345
- Non-audit services — I BURTE 4 4
Depreciation on property, M- BEREETE

plant and equipment (Note 7) (B7E7) 20,244 18,429
Write-off of impairment of inventory W F B RE (MH5E13)

(Note 13) 7 30
Reversal of impairment of inventory BEFERE (ME13)

(Note 13) (93) (400)
Expense relating to short-term lease HEHEEEHENMX 30 -
Operating leases expenses in respect of FAEEL BER

leasehold land, warehouses and offices NS SR a3 - 316
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EBRFFHZ (ME28) 39,053 35,717
Reversal of loss allowance of FEWE 5 BR 5B 18

trade receivables (Note 14) BERE (ME14) (10) (13)
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) Rz EE (HiE34(0)) 2,156 2,180
Travelling expenses ERAX 1,654 1,629
Transportation expenses B 9,223 8,262
Advertising expenses B &R 4,069 3,898
Other expenses H 2 27,259 26,641
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution  $5 &M A « $5E K& 2 85

expenses and administrative expenses M RITHFAXBE 338,991 335,365
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24 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 24 HM¥(ZH) kA-BH
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Bank interest income RITH B U A 768 834
Interest income from an associate ke —RBERRZ
FEWBA 5 8
Unwinding of discount of R B L Ath FE U R IE 2
other receivables (Note) IR (ME) 98 87
Finance income B A 871 929
Interest expense on bank borrowings HITEENERX (1,107) (1,106)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAaGENERX (94) -
Less: amounts capitalised B EEREEERNL
on qualifying assets (Note 7) IE (MEE7) 283 274
Finance costs B (918) (832)
Finance (costs)/income — net MR (ZH) WA~ R85 (47) 97
Note: B E -

R-ZZE—+tF-_A=-+=8B %H(BE) KRG
ERARE—BBLE=FHI L —EHE MU
3,400,000% 7t 2 B HE R EFME W E - B
ELEE -ZRHN T —tF =k

On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose
of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed in 2017.

BREZMEZARERER RZ2E—AF+=
A=+—HZHKREEL#1,360,000% 7L (=
Z— \&:2,040,000EX ) BN T _ZTFE
BoEHRE-

According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2019 of US$1,360,000 (2018:
US$2,040,000) is repayable in 2020. The balance is non-interest
bearing.
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25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

FrisBX

M 2 B IR BEF A il 5B AR B A R A S
BEMEBRRCBITHEGE

RERE WS R AR

ZHTSH e RS

2019 2018

—E-NE —=-N\F

Us$’000 Us$'000

SFEEE FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEEH 4,681 4,638
Under-provision of income tax WAFEMSHEBHETR

in previous years 80 -

Total current tax BNERFIE 42 %8 4,761 4,638

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEATER (M5E20) (533) (25)

4,228 4,613
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25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

25

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan,
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

which is a major

FRrisBA (#8)

R 5= BB P S75 A48 M) B0 BT S 750 B2 i 35 B¢
RALEIEZMEAREEKANERHR
Mt BERBATE I AT

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax B A A1 5 A 19,813 22,007
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% R15% 2B EE 2
(2018: 15%) (ZZ—=NHF:15%) 2,972 3,301
Tax effects of different tax rates TEBEZ G (290) 2,953
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes IR b2 958 480
Income not subject to tax BRRTA 591 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax AR ARG EE
losses (83) (2,572)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 80 -
Tax losses for which no deferred income WEBEREEMESREE
tax asset was recognised Z BB EE - 451
Tax charge MIEX H 4,228 4,613

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i) Vietnam

The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan

The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 20% (2018:17%).

202 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ BIES (#2:A%) AR A 7

EEABRIZVBRBOEERNFE
BBt AT TR0 B 78 SR A S N AT B A9 I 2
HBFHARE-
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26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
A final dividend of US$4,042,000 that relates to the year ended ERABE=_Z - \F+=ZA=+—H8H1L
31 December 2018 was declared on 14 May 2019 and was paid F[EZ A 54,042,000 ETER=-F
in June 2019 (2018: US$6,750,000). —NERTATEHBAERERR-_ZE-NF
NA TR (ZF—/\4 : 6,750,000%
TT) e
The interim dividends paid in 2019 was US$6,080,000 (0.4 RZE-NWEINOFHRER
US cents per share) (2018: US$4,532,000, 0.298 US cents 6,080,000% 7T (FAR0.4%EM) (ZF—N
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 £ :4,532,000% 7T (G A%0.298% 1) ) -
December 2019 of 0.214 US cents per share, amounting to a R EEREEAF RS LIREAHIUED
total dividend of US$3,259,000, is to be proposed for approval HEZZT-hF+A=+—RHLFED
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated RERE B A TRR0.214FL - IR B 4258 =
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. 3,259,000 7T ° Z F4r A B iR W H R
M ERR S -
2019 2018
ZE-hF —T-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.4 US cents XATH B B AR
(2018: 0.298 US cents) per 8 A%0. 4311
ordinary share (ZE—N\F:
0.298%1l) 6,080 4,532
Proposed final dividend of 0.214 US cents  #/R & Bi A% B & I
(2018: 0.265 US cents) per EEAR0.21431l
ordinary share (ZZE-N\%F:
0.265%Alll) 3,259 4,042
9,339 8,574
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 BEER
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BRERBREARGHEAE AR
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the i FIBR AR A B 317 3 8 IR 9 0 4
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHEETE -
during the year.
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Profit attributable to owners of the KRR BB AEAG R
Company (US$'000) (F=71) 15,563 14,285
Weighted average number of BT E AR A AN
ordinary shares in issue FHE(FR)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREKRAF
(US cents per share) (FRREA) 1.02 0.94
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 27 SEREF (#E)
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per BEZ-hLFRZFE-N\F+=
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years A=+—HLEFE aRTEEET
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. B -EREERNEGRELRRT
LEICE
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 ERABFAX(BEERHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TITE - ¥ &EM 30,770 28,579
Bonus B4 2,108 1,868
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RK& A
— B FE 2 3,079 2,783
Other employee benefits E g B & F 3,096 2,487
39,053 35,717
29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 EHBEFIEE
As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group BIEWEAEEERTE FAEERARC
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in ZENFTZA=1T— Bz ARER B
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The HEESRHETHERMNERAKRSTE -ZFE
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of HARERZZZENFE+_A=+—AH2
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly PR 7% 45 BA Ko B 1% AR 7 B EA BT 7518 A HA R &Y
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. I AFIED -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Us$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
As at 1 January w—HA—H 1,478 1,447
Current service cost BIVHA AR 75 1 52 335 110
Payments 3% (399) (79)
As at 31 December W+tZA=+—H 1,414 1,478
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29

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

29 EBHFREFIRE (&)
PERMNEERERRLT:

2019 2018

—Z-h#F —ZT-N\F

Discount rate IR E 9% 9%
Salary growth rate HeEEX 3.0% -7.9% 3.0% -7.9%
Expected years of service remaining T8 HA F¥ 64 AR TS SF IR 13-17 years4 14-17 years®F

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

RER_ZFTNF-A-HEERZHERE
HERBRE AEBAREBEEERE
REBZEEHERBFEEHHER -
EEZEHRE AEESREEMNRE
F-REHRFRIPINBERRERR
MBS
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EERARNURB(FROFMEH (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E ) 383 AR (HEEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE S8FH)HM (F622GE)REFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF mHRAAEZHE)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) ESRERITBABZ#HE
The remuneration of every director and the chief FEEZERSAITHRAE ZEHHEH
executive is set out below: W
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BE-_Z—hE+=-HA=+—8BLt
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Noteb)  benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESHE
ERALNTE
Bxn  HHEAIEE
Fi EHRRENERN ERARRHE HELBHEAD
Name of Director j £33 e GET)) BELL (Fi3th) s ERzEt#E EH
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TER R T£n FER TEn TEn
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREESE 1 343 467 16 - - 827
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 53 &£ 4 (fitsEc) - 380 454 16 - - 850
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRUEE - 184 327 16 - - 527
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou B - 181 327 16 - - 524
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng AL 1 - - 16 - - 17
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERARE - - - 16 - - 16
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BELEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray E¥s bt 2 - - 16 - - 18
M. Ko, Jim-Chen mkEEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BEBEE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total aE 9 1,088 1,575 176 - - 2,848
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

30

EEEARER (FRARGH(H
622E)$53831% AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)REFEL
THRAAREZHE) ()

(A) ESRERTRAEZHE (F)

BT \F+_A=+—HL
FE:

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services
in connection

with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
REFHE
ERARAL
Exm  ENBAAEH
e R REMERN ERENHE WERRBENS
Name of Director j £3:21 ik (fizta) filpz A (B3tb) MRS ERzAb#E EH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
TEL TEn TEn FEn FEn FEn TEL
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREESE 1 343 429 17 - - 790
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) 53 &£ 4 (fitEc) 1 380 416 17 - - 814
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 300 17 - - 498
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou o3y bt - 181 300 17 - - 498
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABREE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERAKLE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RERmEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa (Note (i) ABEEE (W) 1 - - 8 - - 9
M. Ko, Jim-Chen AkEEE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong (Note (i) %38 % & ( Fi3E(i)) - - - 4 - - 4
Total L 12 1,085 1,445 176 - - 2718
Note: B 3T

(i) Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018.

(ii) Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 22
October 2018.

(i)  AERBELCDBHEARDRRELIER
TEE BT - N\FLA=-+=
H B AR -

(iy EEZEELCEZERARFB

MHRTEE BT N\FTA
—t+-HEAER-
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

EEHEARER (FRORGH(H

622E )E383F AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)REFEL
TRABMEZHE) ()

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) ESRERTHRAEZME (&)
(continued)
Aggregate other emoluments paid to
Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESHERESZRY ESHERALNAL
(FRAXAARENBEARZES) HBBAREHEEND
BEXASEUzENS )i tat SE T A ko @t @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
—B-hEF “E-NF —E-0F —TNF —E-hE —E-N\E
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Txn TET Txn TET Txn TET
2,848 2,718 - - 2,848 2,718
Note: 3 -
(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (@) XNFT—RZEZHNHF2AETAR

or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling
allowance.

() The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate

disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2018: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2018: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2018: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2018: same).

EEEARER (FRARGH(H
622E)$53831% AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)REFEL
TRABREZHE) ()

(B) EZENKEARN
REBEE_ZT—-NF+=-_HA=+—H
IFFE TERAEERFEEEELAR
RIS E M B A B M E IS AT R (L A AR
BEMEMBAREN (Z2—N\F:
EIER

(O EEZRLEER
RBEZZE—-—AF+_A=+—H
EFE WEMESZINHRIEER
(ZE—N\F:4MER) -

(D) BEHEERBMAF=FREMHN
RE
RBE-Z-NAFt+-_A=t+—H
LHEE UERREESRE A
F=TRHERAEB(ZF-NF:H
@) e

() FEBUES ZTZRFESBEHNEA
BEERZESESNAREERAR
HANER EERREGBXENE
#®
RBEE-_Z-AF+-_A=+—H
IFE - UENES IRFEFE
HEEABBRZEESNARE
ERAXBAELNER EERK
HR g (ZT—N\F:HRA) -

() ESERXRS RPFERSHTHNERE
)
BRI EE34m R EE N RAFRRK
REEZRERE R ARRALEFT L
HEAKEXBAMMARRESFE
EREEBEEEAEGNEMERXN
R RFHEBH(ZFE—NF: 1
@) e
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2018: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2018: one) individual during the year is as

30 EFRIRES (FRAFGH (%
622E )E383F AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)REFEL
TRABMEZHE) ()

(G) EEBZEMEAL
FEBAFEALEEaMEAL
BREOA (ZE-N\F: HE)HNT
BEx REOMEER EXZ20MP
R - REFERNEBNBTI—B(ZF
—NF:—R)ALZHMET:

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FX5t FET
Wages, basic salaries and IT&  JEH koRRE
allowances 104 107
Bonus TEAL 34 27
Pension costs — defined RIKE KA
contribution plans —E R RE S 2 2
Other employee benefits H g B = -
140 136

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within
the following band:

BIATZMEERNATHE:

Number of individuals

A
2019 2018
—ZE—hE —E-N\F
US$°000 Us$'000
SRE FET
US$130,001 — US$155,000 130,001 7T
- 155,000% 7T 1 1
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31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 RERERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (¥BELECESE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note US$°000 us$'000
B 5 FTEx FET
Profit before income tax B P15 %1 Al ) 19,813 22,007
Adjustments for: MATIEE FE:
— Finance income — B A (871) (929)
- Finance costs — BB 918 832
— Share of post tax loss/ —EhEE & AT
(profit) of an associate BrBii& E 1R,
O ) 99 (44)
— Write-off of impairment — M HFERE
of inventories 7 30
- Reversal of impairment —BEFERE
of inventories (93) (400)
— Depreciation of —ME  WEMEE 7
property, plant and e
equipment 20,244 18,429
— Reversal of impairment —FEE Z RN 14
loss of trade VEREN Ei=Ec4E]
receivables (10) (13)
— Amortisation of —mE EE 9
intangible assets 126 132
- Amortisation of land — T b R 8N 6
use rights - 52
- Amortisation of right- —FREEEEH 8
of-use assets 145 -
— Impairment of amount — FE U — I B B
due from the non- NAEZFEER
controlling interest of W2 FA 7 BB
a subsidiary - 68
— Loss on disposal of —HEME - KE R 22
property, plant and R B IR
equipment 113 426
— Gain on disposal of —HEFELEZ
assets held for sale BEz W - (307)
— Gain on disposal of a —HE—HE 35
subsidiary oY= N Il & (3.940) -
— Impairment of goodwill —HBRE 22 3,580 -
40,131 40,283
Change in working capital LEEEY
(excluding the effects of (REHFEREEE
exchange differences on ZEREETE)
consolidation)
— Inventories —-FE (4,640) (7,864)
— Trade receivables, —EWE ZERN
prepayments and TET FRIB R H M
other receivables FE W R IE (598) (5,043)
— Trade payables, accruals —ENE SRR
and other payables EFTERAREM
J& 5 3R I8 (6,955) 3,298
— Net changes in balances —HEMERQA
with related companies EHz 2T 197 (1,218)
Cash generated from ¥BEELEZRS
operations 28,135 29,456
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31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 REBERERME (H])

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

EBEEZRE (H)
ERAHRZMERAN HEVE K
FERREZRFHRBERRE:

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Net book amount (Note 7) BRTELFE (MIFE7) 116 512
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BERZREZ

plant and equipment (Note 22) EE (M5E22) (113) (426)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEMREEBEZ

plant and equipment FriS 8 3 86

(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) BEXEFEZHE

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

AENF IR & 25 HE 2 B F R
DM RER) FEES-

Net debt BRFE
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-)N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkReEEY 41,127 34,215
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ R{T{EHR—R —EREE
one year (24,748) (20,469)
Bank borrowings — repayable after HITER-—R—FREE
one year (15,376) (15,697)
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE-EEY (111) -
Lease liabilities — non-current portion THE & & —FERIEIS o (3,016) -
Net debt B (2,124) (1,951)
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 41,127 34,215
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEREE—EEF X (14,343) (6,365)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B BERE - F xR (28,908) (29,801)
Net debt B (2,124) (1,951)
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31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 FEHEREERME(E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) BEXFHEYHIR (&)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMETHZEE
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion
R-FREE R-FHIH HESE- HESE-
ZRITRE ZRITRE EIEEE ) E )
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET Txr Txr TET
Net cash as at R-E-N\F
1 January 2018 —-R-AZEe3FE (15,906) (19,491) - -
Cash flows Reng 6,733 (7,502) - -
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEH% - - - -
Other non-cash movement HEtERe &g (11,296) 11,296 - -
Net debt as at R-E-N\F
31 December 2018 t=ZA=+-8H
ZEBRE (20,469) (15,697) - -
Recognised on adoption of REBEBHBRE
HKFRS16 (Note 2.2) EH B 165 FHER
(M3r2.2) - - 166 2,315
Net debt as at R-E-hF
1 January 2019 —A-BAZE¥RE (20,469) (15,697) 166 2,315
Cash flows Reng 5,417 (9,325) (324) -
Foreign exchange adjustments P& % (50) - - -
Acquisition - leases WE-HE - - 725 701
Termination - leases BIF-1HE - - (550) -
Other non-cash movement HitERe g (9,646) 9,646 9 -
Net debt as at RZB-NF
31 December 2019 +=A=+-H
ZEBRFH (24,748) (15,376) 111 3,016
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32 COMMITMENTS

32 ki
AEERBRERRCATNERELEZER

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of

the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ST
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Contracted but not provided for BRTHB R B E
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 3,587 2,493
Investment in an associate (Note 11) REE QAR 21 E
(FFEE11) 112 112
3,699 2,605
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 BRAR
At 31 December 2019, the Company has given guarantees for RZE-NF+ZA=+—HB X2a"E
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$128,600,000 M8 A 5] A%0128,600,000E 7T (= — )\
(2018: US$128,600,000), of which US$78,753,000 (2018: £ :128,600,000% 7T ) Z HRITRLE 2 2
US$79,067,000) has not been utilised. 1R H 78,753,000k 7T (Z &2 — )\
79,067,000% 7T ) M A B A
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 FREALTES

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

December 2019:

Related party

AEBEEERT/EREEK EKEER
EHBREEE BHEXRE HBKEXRE B
ML BN L BKERE  BR
XEE BXHEE BHREE - BXBL
T BRERERGREL L

@) TEBHER_—_EE—HLFE+=A
=t+—BzEBEEALREHEARE
B RRIR D

Relationship with the Group

FHEAL BEASENER

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan™) A substantial shareholder of the Company
AR ERBERAR ([AEKMA) ARAHEERE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group
EMBEFEZERER AT REENBERR

Capron Group Limited
Capron Group Limited
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(b)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BHZEALTZS ()
Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EASERFEBBERETHE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as AREBEATRSWT:
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note US$'000 us$'000
B 5 FEn FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan mAERTHEED (i) 7,410 8,687
Technical support fee paid to BN SR N EFE
Taiwan Vedan SERE (ii) 2,156 2,180
Agency commission income M) & & WK U EL A
received from Taiwan Vedan RIB A2 A (ii) 2 2
Notes: B 55
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RRAREERR MBAEATIE
the related party were conducted in the normal course of B2 HEERTAEXEKABREFRR

(c)

business in accordance with the underlying terms.

(ii) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

transactions were carried out in the normal course of

business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors and senior management,
for employee services is shown below.

(c)

IRARRE R FCETT

(iy ARABEFERR ZEXZERR
EBBIETET L ARBBERB
EIGRRE -

TEEBEAEME
HEERBENINENEIZEEA
B(BEMARTEZERERER
B) 2 HM#EsImT -

2019 2018
—E-NF - N\&F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other short-term FehEMEEHEERET
employee benefits 3,591 3,469
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34

35

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Year-end balances with the related parties
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following
significant balances with the related parties:

34

FHREALRS (])

(d) BHRAEREATZFREER
RZB-NF+=ZA=+—H £&
EEBEEALZTEHEBRNT:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Current: B ER -
Amount due from FEU & K T 2 5/IE
Taiwan Vedan (i) 954 1,191
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan JER & B K 2 58 (i) (1,329) (1,391)
Loan to an associate HBTHBMERAZER (ii) 122 120
Amount due to Capron Group Jf& 1 Capron Group
Limited Limited Z 3k 18 (iii) (22) -
Notes: MfsT -

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(i) The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at 4%
per annum, denominated in US$ and is repayable on 20
May 2021.

(iii)  The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 January 2019, Ordino Investments Pte Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell
all of its shares of Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. with a cash consideration of US$1. The transaction was
completed on 29 January 2019.
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(i)  BERANMAEESREREER
2R NEEEERY-

(il BTIBRERRZERAERT &
ERRABTE - AFETIHE A
R-_ZE-_—FHRA_t+HEE-

(i) E2Capron Group Limited 2 & & &
KRR 8 LAETAE WA
R—FRNEE-

HE—MHMEAR
RZE—NRFE—AZ+ XA AXQFAZ
24 KB A alOordino Investments Pte
LimitedE3B Y E = FRI LB EWHE - LA
EERLURRNSEEXEBRAT 22
R - BHeREBIET ZRXRFIERZE
—hWE—A=-thBEMK-
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35 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

35 HE—MMEBLT ()

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposed EHECZHBARINEERMsEEEE
subsidiary as the date of disposal are as follows: EaE@EmmT:
Us$'000
FET
Consideration receivable: EWRE:
Cash consideration (Note) RERME (FFE) -

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

FE A 5 R 3R N B At FE USRI
RekReFED

Trade and other payable FET & 5 BR 30 K E A FE < 5K 8 151
Carrying amounts of net liabilities disposed EHEZEEFEREE 128
Exchange reserve released [ R 3,707
Non-controlling interest for disposal of a subsidiary BEHE —HNB AR 2 IEERES 105
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 22) HE—REB A 2 WS (KisE22) 3,940

Note:

The cash consideration for the sale of the subsidiary is US$1.

i

HEMBRARZRERERIET-
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36

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

At the middle of March 2020, following the outbreak of
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the COVID-19 outbreak”) in
early 2020 in China and spread over the world, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across all operation sites of the Group
postponement of work resumption after the Chinese New
Year holiday in China offices, certain level of restrictions and
controls over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements,
heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements
in factories and offices and encouraged social distancing, etc.
Among the major markets of Vedan, the impacts in the PRC,
the US and Japan are expected to be more serious while the
impact on its largest market, Vietnam, is considered to be
comparatively low. The Group is still in the process of assessing
the impacts and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative
impacts to the Group.
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 FRAFREARRRERED
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company rRREEEEX

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—NF
Note uUss$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RtB AR ZIRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REgE Qa2 WE 6,308 6,308
Loan to an associate BTBENRZER 122 -
Loan to a subsidiary LTHBRRZER 1,200 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 173,660 172,338
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UG BT /B R B3R IR 53,060 39,245
Amount due from a related party FE W G A A T 50E 18 -
Short-term loan to an associate BTBERNRZREER - 120
Short-term loan to a subsidiary BTHBARZEHER - 1,200
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < 3018 & E Ath FE U IR 658 679
Short-term bank deposits EERITER 1,806 2,839
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 4,844 3,022
Total current assets RBEEHE 60,386 47,105
Total assets EEHE 234,046 219,443
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners of RRRIER AEIE#ER
the Company
Share capital A% 7 15,228 15,228
Reserves & (Note(a))
(Fff5E()) 212,379 199,803
Total equity ERBRE 227,607 215,031
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 XAFEEAGRRREREMGEE (F)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) EAREEEER (&)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2019 2018
—ZE—hEF —ZE—NF
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FErx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 A & E Ath FEA R 3,117 3,017
Bank borrowings HRITEE 1,993 -
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFEH B GE - 4
Amount due to a related party JERN B REEA LA 1,329 1,391
Total current liabilities REEEASHE 6,439 4,412
Total equity and liabilities ERREEESE 234,046 219,443
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARREEARREEEZEN _E=-F
of Directors on 24 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. FZAZTOASBEMIAHTIALRESE
E- 3
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
HEEE B
Director Director
EE =
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 ELFEEARERREREH (]8)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) rRAREEEER (&)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MaE@A R RFEEE S
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
RORER
HibfR1E ERFEE REEF R
Us$'000 Us$'000 uUs$'000 Us$'000
FE FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 HNZZE—-NF—A—H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
Comprehensive loss THEEER
Loss for the year KEEEIE - - (7,704) (7,704)
Other comprehensive income HfthZ2 @WK A
Currency translation difference  [EH %= %8 - (85) - (85)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBAE - (85) (7,704) (7,789)
Dividends paid BT S - - (11,282) (11,282)
At 31 December 2018 RZT—-NEF
+—-A=+—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HF—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
Comprehensive loss 2EEER
Profit for the year KE G F - - 22,599 22,599
Other comprehensive income HtZEUK A
Currency translation difference [} ZE %8 - 99 - 99
Total comprehensive loss 2HERERE 194,098 99 22,599 22,698
Dividends paid BTIRE - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+ZA=+—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379

Annual Report 2019 %% 221



Five-Year Financial Summary

TFEUBME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-A=+—HLEFEGRAEER

DECEMBER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-AF —T-NF —FT—+tF —T-RFE —ZT-HF
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
T Xt FET FET FET FET
Revenue Uy #& 357,857 356,772 322,805 327,640 327,821
Profit before bR FT1S T B
income tax il 19,813 22,007 23,308 28,476 15,878
Income tax expense FTiS Bl (4,228) (4,613) (4,570) (6,243) (4,048)
Profit attributable to VIN/NETE Z SN
owners of &3
the Company 15,563 14,285 19,061 22,501 12,095
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 BW+_B=+—HiGSEERER
DECEMBER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-AE ZE-)N\F ZZT—+tF ZET-—R"E =ZZT—I1F
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000 US$'000
SFEE R FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BENBE
Total assets BERE 369,476 367,805 358,701 356,790 356,629
Total liabilities BERTE (81,749) (81,123) (76,118) (77,584) (83,179)
Total equity e A 287,727 286,682 282,583 279,206 273,450
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEx

Access to Bloomberg
Access to Reuters

Board Lot
Par Value

Trading Currency

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

US$0.01

HKD

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

31 December 2019

24 March 2020

19 May 2020

In the last week of
August 2020*

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

Bslip:i

B tn A aR

B 32 P
Z1EhRE
&4t Wi
BEEM

[ =]
RHE%

METER

EEERE
RERERQMH
BREFAE
THEIREQMH

S 1 T

B% 5% AR 5

BRI ER

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

0.01%7T
AT

—E-hFE+ZHA=+—H
—E-FTF=A=+WMA
—E-ZTFRA+AIA
ZEZZTFENAR
&% — B2

EOBEBARNHBFE RERZER  FHEARRE
ZEBEMBFELSE:

EEEEREROA

it

ERERBER1835%

& FA 5412

E 3% 1 (852) 2980 1768
{8 & : (852) 2528 3158

FERRRROD 2 AL BRI FERE
MEBBEMBEELDE -
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Investor Relations

REERR

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’'s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
one-on-one investor meetings with major international institutional
investors including First Shanghai, Sunwah Kingsway, among others,
employing all the different important channels to nurture good
investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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